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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1.

Consolidated Financial Statements
CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)
September 30,
2010
(unaudited)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
LNG inventory
Accounts and interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

$

NON-CURRENT RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS, NET
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE LNG ASSETS
OTHER
TOTAL ASSETS

$

81,515
116,231
901
3,259
15,367
217,273
82,892
2,170,820
39,375
76,819
6,067
23,232
2,616,478

December 31,
2009

$

$

88,372
138,309
32,602
9,899
17,093
286,275
82,892
2,216,855
47,043
76,819
6,088
16,650
2,732,622

LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Current debt—related parties
Current debt
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF DISCOUNT
LONG-TERM DEBT—RELATED PARTIES, NET OF DISCOUNT
DEFERRED REVENUE
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1,393
242,598
12,499
71,492
26,340
85
354,407

$

2,585,408
74,629
30,734
2,312
—

DEFICIT
Stockholders’ deficit
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 5.0 million shares authorized, none issued
Common stock, $.003 par value
Authorized: 240.0 million shares at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009
Issued and outstanding: 57.6 million and 56.7 million shares at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively;
Treasury stock: 1.0 million and 0.7 million shares at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively, at cost
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Non-controlling interest
TOTAL DEFICIT
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFICIT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,692,740
349,135
33,500
23,162
—

—

$

426
—
—
38,425
26,456
905
66,212

—

173
(2,175)
350,388
(975,316)
(185)

170
(1,494)
336,971
(985,246)
(133)

(627,115)
196,103
(431,012)
2,616,478

(649,732)
217,605
(432,127)
2,732,622

$

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
REVENUES
LNG receiving terminal revenues
Oil and gas sales
Marketing and trading
Other
TOTAL REVENUES

$

65,945
749
1,533
21
68,248

$

65,119
797
(9,609)
25
56,332

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
$

199,109
2,170
14,703
58
216,040

$

103,320
2,370
(10,265)
100
95,525

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline development expense
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expense
Oil and gas production and exploration costs
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
General and administrative expense
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES

4,885
9,053
133
16,649
15,145
45,865

122
8,004
126
14,269
15,557
38,078

6,746
31,673
343
47,885
51,273
137,920

122
26,033
290
39,126
48,776
114,347

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

22,383

18,254

78,120

(18,822)

—
—
—
(63,899)
169
46
(63,684)
(41,301)
—
(41,301)
721
(40,580)

—
1,158
—
(61,557)
114
124
(60,161)
(41,907)
—
(41,907)
(590)
(42,497)

128,330
461
(1,011)
(198,044)
408
(42)
(69,898)
8,222
—
8,222
1,708
9,930

—
4,482
45,363
(176,766)
1,313
107
(125,501)
(144,323)
—
(144,323)
6,034
(138,289)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Gain on sale of equity method investment
Derivative gain, net
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt
Interest expense, net
Interest income
Other income (loss)
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSE
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX PROVISION
NET INCOME (LOSS)
NET (INCOME) LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS

$

Net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders—basic
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders—diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—basic
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding—diluted

$
$

(0.73)
(0.73)
55,609
55,609

$
$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(0.80)
(0.80)
52,945
52,945

$
$
$

0.18
0.16
55,316
61,314

$
$
$

(2.71)
(2.71)
51,073
51,073

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Balance—December 31, 2009
Issuances of restricted stock
Forfeitures of restricted stock
Stock-based compensation
Treasury stock acquired
Comprehensive income: Foreign currency
translation
Loss attributable to non-controlling interest
Distribution to non-controlling interest
Net income attributable to common
stockholders
Balance— September 30, 2010

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
56,651 $
170
1,248
3
(51)
—
—
—
(204)
—
—
—
—

—
—
—

—
57,644 $

—
173

Accumulated
Additional
Other
NonTotal
Treasury Stock
Paid-in
Accumulated Comprehensive controlling
Equity
Shares
Amount
Capital
Deficit
Loss
Interest
(Deficit)
697 $ (1,494) $
336,971 $
(985,246) $
(133) $
217,605 $ (432,127 )
—
—
(4)
—
—
—
(1)
51
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
13,419
—
—
—
13,419
204
(681)
2
—
—
—
(679)
—
—
—
—
952 $

—
—
—
—
(2,175) $

—
—
—
—
350,388 $

—
—
—
9,930
(975,316) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(52)
—
—
—
(185) $

—
(1,708)
(19,794)
—
196,103 $

(52)
(1,708)
(19,794)
9,930
(431,012)

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
(unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders to net cash used in operating activities:
Gain on sale of limited partnership investment
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Amortization of debt issuance and debt discount
Non-cash compensation
Restricted interest income on restricted cash and cash equivalents
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
Non-cash derivative (gain) loss
Non-cash inventory write-downs
Non-controlling interest
Non-cash interest expense
Use of cash for accrued interest
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
LNG inventory
Accounts and interest receivable
Deferred revenue
Prepaid expenses and other
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of limited partnership investment
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline construction-in-process, net
Distributions from limited partnership investment
Purchases of intangibles and fixed assets, net of sales
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
Distributions to non-controlling interest
Repurchases and prepayments of debt
Debt issuance costs
Purchase of treasury shares
Other
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—end of period

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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9,930

$

(138,289)

(128,330)
1,011
47,885
20,397
13,380
—
(4,337)
(820)
—
(1,708)
24,963
(60,899)
(5,872)

—
(45,362)
39,126
21,179
13,416
(2,794)
(22,237)
587
17,065
(6,034)
23,866
—
(19)

40,019
31,702
2,246
(3,116)
1,918
(11,631)

30,364
(34,335)
(433)
20,696
(11,022)
(94,226)

104,330
3,939

—
96,464

(2,805)
3,900
291
(91)
109,564

(97,991)
9,000
(293)
(533)
6,647

22,475
(19,794)
(104,681)
(9)
(681)
(2,100)
(104,790)

123,263
(19,794)
(30,030)
(121)
(80)
(497)
72,741

(6,857)
88,372
81,515

(14,838)
102,192
87,354

$

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
NOTE 1—Basis of Presentation
The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of Cheniere Energy, Inc. have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required
by GAAP for complete financial statements. In our opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation, have been included.
As used in these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement, the terms “Cheniere,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or
controlled subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated or indicated by context.
Results of operations for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that will be realized for the
year ended December 31, 2010.
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period information to conform to the current presentation. The reclassifications had no effect on our overall consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2009.
NOTE 2—Liquidity
As of September 30, 2010, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other working capital from LNG and natural gas marketing activities of
$89.3 million that will be available to Cheniere, which excludes cash and cash equivalents available to Cheniere Energy Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”), a publicly traded
partnership in which we own a 90.6% interest, and Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass LNG”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere Partners. In addition, we had restricted
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $199.1 million which was designated for the following purposes: approximately $5.2 million for Sabine Pass LNG’s working capital;
approximately $51.9 million for Cheniere Partners’ working capital; approximately $137.3 million for interest payments related to the Senior Notes described below; and
approximately $4.7 million for other restricted purposes. Although consolidated for financial reporting, Cheniere, Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners operate with
independent capital structures.
As of September 30, 2010, we reclassified $255.1 million of debt from long-term liability to current liability because the lenders of our 2008 Convertible Loans can require
prepayment of the loans within 12 months of September 30, 2010. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require a prepayment, they must provide 90 days notice between
May 18, 2011 and June 16, 2011. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require prepayment, we believe we will have sufficient unrestricted cash, liquid assets, cash
generated from our operations and access to capital markets to satisfy the obligation and fund our operations until our next maturity in May 2012. In order to satisfy our first
required principal payment in May 2012, we will need to continue improving our capital structure, which may be accomplished by entering into commercial agreements,
refinancing our existing indebtedness, issuing equity or other securities, selling assets or through a combination of the foregoing, which will be dependent on factors such as
worldwide natural gas and capital market conditions (see “Risk Factors” in our current report on Form 8-K dated as of August 6, 2010).
We have made progress in reducing our debt obligations. During the second quarter of 2009, we prepaid $120.4 million aggregate principal amount of our Convertible
Senior Unsecured Notes using a combination of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million shares of our common stock. In May 2010, we prepaid $102 million of the
2007 Term Loan using the proceeds from the sale of our 30% interest in Freeport LNG Development, L.P. (“Freeport LNG”). In June 2010, we prepaid $60.9 million in accrued
interest and $2.7 million of principal on the 2008 Convertible Loans using funds held in a Terminal Use Agreement (“TUA”) reserve account that were released as they were no
longer needed to make quarterly TUA payments.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued
(unaudited)
NOTE 3—Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents that are contractually restricted as to usage or withdrawal, as follows:
Senior Notes Debt Service Reserve
Sabine Pass LNG consummated private offerings of an aggregate principal amount of $2,215.5 million of Senior Notes (See Note 10—“Debt and Debt—Related Parties”).
Under the indenture governing the Senior Notes (the “Sabine Pass Indenture”), except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain
conditions are satisfied: there must be on deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the number of
elapsed months since the last semi-annual interest payment, and there must be on deposit in a permanent debt service reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-annual interest
payment of $82.4 million. Distributions are permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding requirements, a fixed charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and other conditions
specified in the Sabine Pass Indenture. As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we classified the permanent debt service reserve fund of $82.4 million as non-current
restricted cash and cash equivalents. As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we classified $54.9 million and $13.7 million, respectively, as current restricted cash and
cash equivalents for the payment of interest due within twelve months. These cash accounts are controlled by a collateral trustee, and, therefore, are shown as restricted cash and
cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
TUA Reserve
Under the original terms and conditions of the 2008 Convertible Loans, we were required to fund a reserve account (“TUA Reserve Account”) with $135.0 million to pay
obligations of Cheniere Marketing, LLC (“Cheniere Marketing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, under its TUA with Sabine Pass LNG and as additional collateral for the
2008 Convertible Loans. The cash account is controlled by a collateral trustee, and therefore, is shown as restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheet as
of December 31, 2009.
In June 2010, we amended the 2008 Convertible Loans to permit all funds on deposit in the TUA Reserve Account to be applied to the prepayment of the accrued interest on
the loans outstanding under the 2008 Convertible Loans, with any remainder to be applied to the prepayment of the principal balance of such 2008 Convertible Loans. As a result,
$63.6 million from the TUA Reserve Account was applied to such prepayment, leaving the balance of the TUA reserve account at zero at September 30, 2010. The balance of the
TUA reserve account was zero at December 31, 2009.
Other Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, $57.0 million and $117.5 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents was primarily related to cash and cash
equivalents held by Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners that is considered restricted to Cheniere. As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, due to various other
contractual restrictions, $4.3 million and $7.1 million had been classified as current restricted cash and cash equivalents, respectively, and $0.5 million had been classified as noncurrent restricted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
NOTE 4—LNG Inventory
LNG inventory is recorded at cost and is subject to the lower of cost or market (“LCM”) adjustments at the end of each period. Inventory cost is determined using the
average cost method. Recoveries of losses resulting from interim period LCM adjustments are recorded when market price recoveries occur on the same inventory in the same
fiscal year. These recoveries are recognized as gains in later interim periods with such gains not exceeding previously recognized losses. As of September 30, 2010 and December
31, 2009, we had 250,000 million British thermal units (“MMBtu”) of LNG inventory recorded at $0.9 million and 7,778,000 MMBtu of LNG inventory recorded at $32.6
million, respectively, on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
NOTE 5—Variable Interest Entity
In March 2010, Cheniere Marketing entered into various agreements (“LNGCo Agreements”) with JPMorgan LNG Co. (“LNGCo”), an indirect subsidiary of JPMorgan
Chase & Co., effective April 1, 2010, providing Cheniere Marketing with financial support to source more cargos of LNG than it could source on a stand-alone basis. Under the
LNGCo Agreements, Cheniere Marketing has agreed to develop and maintain commercial and trading opportunities in the LNG industry and present any such
6

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued
(unaudited)
opportunities exclusively to LNGCo. In addition, Cheniere Marketing is responsible for providing operational and administrative services to LNGCo in exchange for a portion of
the risk and return of certain assets and operating results of LNGCo. In return for the services to be provided by Cheniere Marketing, LNGCo pays a fixed fee to Cheniere
Marketing, and may pay additional fees dependent upon the gross margins of each transaction, and the aggregate revenue earned during the term of the various agreements. In the
event LNGCo incurs operating losses on its LNG cargo activities, Cheniere Marketing would be responsible for funding a portion of these operating losses. Cheniere Marketing
holds no ownership interest in LNGCo and does not have the authority to contractually bind LNGCo under the LNGCo Agreements. LNGCo has various operational
responsibilities and unilateral participating rights to direct the activities of LNGCo that most significantly impact LNGCo’s economic performance. The term of the LNGCo
Agreements is two years; however, either party may terminate without penalty at the end of one year. We have determined that LNGCo is a variable interest entity (“VIE”) for
which Cheniere Marketing is not the primary beneficiary because Cheniere Marketing has a portion of the risk and return of certain assets and operating results of LNGCo, but
Cheniere Marketing holds no equity in LNGCo and does not have substantive decision making ability. As a result, we have not consolidated LNGCo into Cheniere’s financial
statements.
In April 2010, Cheniere Marketing sold its remaining LNG inventory of 2.4 million MMBtu to LNGCo.
During the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010, we recognized $2.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, of marketing and trading revenues from
LNGCo. As of September 30, 2010, Cheniere Marketing’s maximum exposure to loss relating to LNGCo was $3.7 million related to margin deposits that have been paid to
LNGCo and fixed fee and gross margin revenue receivables earned as of September 30, 2010. A portion of this $3.7 million represents our fixed fee receivable and is reported as
accounts and interest receivable, and the remaining portion is reported as other non-current assets and is to be paid to Cheniere Marketing upon the completion or termination of
the LNGCo Agreements.
NOTE 6— Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of LNG receiving terminal costs, natural gas pipeline costs, oil and gas properties costs, and fixed assets costs, as follows (in
thousands):
September 30,
2010
LNG RECEIVING TERMINAL COSTS
LNG receiving terminal
LNG receiving terminal construction-in-process
LNG site and related costs, net
Accumulated depreciation
Total LNG receiving terminal costs, net

$

NATURAL GAS PIPELINE COSTS
Natural gas pipeline
Natural gas pipeline construction-in-process
Pipeline right-of-ways
Accumulated depreciation
Total natural gas pipeline costs, net

1,637,960
38,783
2,990
(71,648)
1,608,085

December 31,
2009
$

1,637,542
37,120
2,994
(40,200)
1,637,456

563,698
2,422
18,455
(34,195)
550,380

564,213
1,995
18,455
(23,004)
561,659

OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES, successful efforts method
Proved
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization
Total oil and gas properties, net

3,857
(2,485)
1,372

3,565
(1,787)
1,778

FIXED ASSETS
Computers and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Computer software

5,478
4,509
12,356

5,799
5,291
12,284

Leasehold improvements
Other
Accumulated depreciation
Total fixed assets, net

7,282
1,465
(20,107)
10,983

9,258
1,488
(18,158)
15,962

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

$

7

2,170,820

$

2,216,855

CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued
(unaudited)
LNG Receiving Terminal Costs
Depreciation expense related to the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal totaled $10.4 million and $8.8 million for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively, and totaled $31.4 million and $22.4 million for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Natural Gas Pipeline Costs
Depreciation expense related to our Creole Trail pipeline totaled $3.7 million for each of the three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, and totaled $11.2
million and $11.1 million for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Fixed Assets
Our fixed assets are recorded at cost and are depreciated on a straight-line method based on estimated lives of the individual assets or groups of assets. Depreciation expense
related to our fixed assets totaled $0.9 million and $1.6 million for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively; and totaled $3.4 million and $4.9
million for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
NOTE 7— Non-controlling Interest
We have consolidated our interest in Cheniere Partners because we have a controlling interest in the partnership. Therefore, Cheniere Partners’ financial statements are
consolidated in our consolidated financial statements and its other equity is recorded as a non-controlling interest. The following table sets forth the components of our noncontrolling interest balance attributable to third-party investors’ interest (in thousands):
Net proceeds from Cheniere Partners’ issuance of common units (1)
Net proceeds from Holdings’ sale of Cheniere Partners common units (2)
Distributions to Cheniere Partners’ non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest share of loss of Cheniere Partners
Non-controlling interest as of September 30, 2010

$

$

98,442
203,946
(86,209)
(20,076)
196,103

(1)

In March and April 2007, we and Cheniere Partners completed a public offering of 15,525,000 Cheniere Partners common units (“Cheniere Partners Offering”). Through
the Cheniere Partners Offering, Cheniere Partners received $98.4 million in net proceeds from the issuance of its common units to the public.

(2)

In conjunction with the Cheniere Partners Offering, Cheniere LNG Holdings, LLC (“Holdings”) sold a portion of the Cheniere Partners common units held by it to the
public, realizing proceeds net of offering costs of $203.9 million, which included $39.4 million of net proceeds realized once the underwriters exercised their option to
purchase an additional 2,025,000 Cheniere Partners common units from Holdings. Due to the subordinated distribution rights on our subordinated units, we have recorded
those proceeds as a non-controlling interest.

NOTE 8—Investment in Limited Partnership
In May 2010, we sold our 30% interest in Freeport LNG to institutional investors for net proceeds of $104.3 million. We accounted for our investment in Freeport LNG
using the equity method of accounting. Upon the closing of the sale, we had unrecorded cumulative suspended losses related to our investment in Freeport LNG, as the basis in our
investment had been reduced to zero. During our investment, we received $24.0 million in distributions in excess of our share of income (losses); therefore, we presented the
distributions as a long-term liability representing a negative equity investment on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a result of the sale, we recognized a net gain of $128.3
million. The gain was comprised of net proceeds of $104.3 million and $24.0 million in distributions in excess of income.
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CHENIERE ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—Continued
(unaudited)
NOTE 9—Accrued Liabilities
As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

Accrued interest expense and related debt fees
Payroll
LNG receiving terminal construction and operating costs
Other accrued liabilities
Total accrued liabilities

September 30,
2010
$
55,698
7,409
2,035
6,350
$
71,492

December 31,
2009
$
16,179
11,118
10,335
793
$
38,425

September 30,
2010

December 31,
2009

NOTE 10—Debt and Debt—Related Parties
As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, our debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

Current debt (including related parties):
2008 Convertible Loans (including related parties)
Long-term debt (including related parties):
Senior Notes (including related parties)
2007 Term Loan
2008 Convertible Loans (including related parties)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
Total long-term debt
Long-term debt discount:
Senior Notes (including related parties)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
Total debt discount
Long-term debt (including related parties), net of discount

$

255,097

$

—

$

2,215,500
298,000
—
204,630
2,718,130

$

2,215,500
400,000
293,714
204,630
3,113,844

$

(28,950)
(29,143)
(58,093)
2,660,037

$

(32,471)
(39,498)
(71,969)
3,041,875

Sabine Pass LNG Senior Notes
In November 2006, Sabine Pass LNG issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,032.0 million of Senior Notes, consisting of $550.0 million of 7¼% Senior Secured Notes
due 2013 (the “2013 Notes”) and $1,482.0 million of 7½% Senior Secured Notes due 2016 (the “2016 Notes” and collectively with the 2013 Notes, the “Senior Notes”). In
September 2008, Sabine Pass LNG issued an additional $183.5 million, before discount, of 2016 Notes whose terms were identical to the previously outstanding 2016 Notes. The
net proceeds received from the additional issuance of 2016 Notes were $145.0 million. The additional issuance and the previously outstanding 2016 Notes are treated as a single
series of notes under the Sabine Pass Indenture.
Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year. The Senior Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a
security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets. Under the Sabine Pass Indenture, except for permitted tax distributions,
Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions are satisfied: there must be on deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the
semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the number of elapsed months since the last semi-annual interest payment, and there must be on deposit in a permanent debt service
reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-annual interest payment of $82.4 million. Distributions are permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding requirements, a fixed
charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and other conditions specified in the Sabine Pass Indenture. During the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010, Sabine Pass
LNG made distributions of $86.8 million and $298.6 million, respectively, to Cheniere Partners after satisfying all of the applicable conditions in the Sabine Pass Indenture. During
the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009, Sabine Pass LNG made distributions of $73.2 million and $222.5 million, respectively, to Cheniere Partners after
satisfying all of the applicable conditions in the Sabine Pass Indenture.
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As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we classified $74.6 million and $72.9 million, respectively, as part of long-term debt—related parties on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets because related parties held these portions of the Senior Notes.
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325.0 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes to qualified institutional buyers
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The notes bear interest at a rate of 2¼% per year and mature in August 2012. The notes are convertible at
any time into our common stock under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 28.2326 shares per $1,000 principal amount of the notes, which is equal to a
conversion price of approximately $35.42 per share. As of September 30, 2010, no holders had elected to convert their notes at the conversion rate.
We may redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10
trading days the volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five consecutive trading days. In the event of such
redemption, we will make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury
securities rate plus 50 basis points. The indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.
On January 1, 2009, we adopted an accounting standard that requires issuers of certain convertible debt instruments to separately account for the liability component and
the equity component represented by the embedded conversion option in a manner that will reflect that entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized
in subsequent periods. The following table summarizes the liability component of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (in thousands):
September 30,
2010
$
204,630
(29,143)
$
175,487

Principal amount
Unamortized discount
Net carrying amount

December 31,
2009
$
204,630
(39,498)
$
165,132

The unamortized discount is being amortized through the August 2012 maturity of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes. Interest expense for the Convertible Senior
Unsecured Notes, including the debt discount amortization, for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 was $10.4 million and $16.8 million,
respectively. The effective interest rate for the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes as of September 30, 2010 was 10.9%.
2007 Term Loan
In May 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC (“Cheniere Subsidiary”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement (“2007
Term Loan”). Borrowings under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9¾% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid principal amount of the 2007
Term Loan outstanding and is payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on May 31, 2012.
The 2007 Term Loan is secured by a pledge of our 135,383,831 subordinated units in Cheniere Partners.
In May 2010, we sold our 30% interest in Freeport LNG, which was pledged as security of the 2007 Term Loan, to institutional investors for net proceeds of $104.3
million. The net proceeds from the sale were used to prepay $102.0 million of the 2007 Term Loan in May 2010 (see Note 8—“Investment in Limited Partnership” for additional
information). As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, $298.0 million and $400.0 million, respectively, were outstanding under the 2007 Term Loan and were included
in long-term debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
2008 Convertible Loans
In August 2008, we entered into a credit agreement pursuant to which we obtained $250.0 million in convertible term loans (“2008 Convertible Loans”). The 2008
Convertible Loans will mature in 2018, but the lenders can require prepayment of the loan for 30 days following August 15, 2011, 2013 and 2015, and upon a change of control.
The 2008 Convertible Loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum, except during the occurrence of an event of default during which time the rate of interest will be
14% per annum. Interest is due semi-annually on the last business day of January and July. At our option, until August 15, 2011, accrued interest may be added to the principal on
each semi-annual interest date. The aggregate amount of all accrued interest to August 15,
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2011 will be payable upon the maturity date. The 2008 Convertible Loans are secured by Cheniere’s rights and fees payable under management services agreements with Sabine
Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners, by Cheniere’s 10.9 million common units in Cheniere Partners, by the equity and non-real property assets of Cheniere’s pipeline entities, by the
equity of various other subsidiaries and certain other assets and subsidiary guarantees. The outstanding principal amount may be exchanged for newly-created Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock”), with voting rights limited to the equivalent of 10,125,000 shares of Cheniere common stock. The
exchange ratio is one share of Series B Preferred Stock for each $5,000 of outstanding borrowings, subject to adjustment. The aggregate preferred stock is exchangeable into
shares of Cheniere common stock at a price of $5.00 per share pursuant to a broadly syndicated offering. No portion of any accrued interest is eligible for conversion into Series B
Preferred Stock.
As long as the 2008 Convertible Loans are exchangeable for shares of Series B Preferred Stock or shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the holders of a
majority of the 2008 Convertible Loans and Series B Preferred Stock, acting together, have the right to nominate two individuals to the Company’s Board of Directors, and
together with the Board of Directors, a third nominee, who would be an independent director. In addition, one of the lenders is Scorpion Capital Partners LP, an affiliate of one of
the Company’s directors.
In June 2010, the 2008 Convertible Loans were amended to permit all funds on deposit in the TUA Reserve Account to be applied to the prepayment of the accrued interest
on the loans outstanding under the 2008 Convertible Loans, with any remainder to be applied to the prepayment of the principal balance of such 2008 Convertible Loans. As a
result, $63.6 million from the TUA Reserve Account was used to prepay $60.9 million of accrued interest and $2.7 million of principal.
As of September 30, 2010, we reclassified $255.1 million of debt from long-term liability to current liability because the lenders of our 2008 Convertible Loans can require
prepayment of the loans within 12 months of September 30, 2010. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require a prepayment, they must provide 90 days notice no later
than June 16, 2011 (see Note 2—“Liquidity”). As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, $255.1 million and $293.7 million were outstanding under the 2008
Convertible Loans and are presented as on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as follows (in thousands):
September 30,
2010
Current debt:
Current debt—related parties
Current debt
Total Current debt

$

Long-term debt:
Long-term debt—related parties
Long-term debt
Long-term 2008 Convertible Loans
Total 2008 Convertible Loans

$

242,598
12,499
255,097

—
—
—
255,097

December 31,
2009
$

$

—
—
—

280,423
13,291
293,714
293,714

NOTE 11—Financial Instruments
We entered into financial derivatives to hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows and currency fluctuations attributable to the future sale of LNG
inventory. Changes in the fair value of our derivatives are reported in earnings because they do not meet the criteria to be designated as a hedging instrument that is required to
qualify for cash flow hedge accounting. In addition, we entered into financial derivatives in order to take market positions associated with LNG and natural gas.
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The estimated fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged currently between willing parties. The fair value of our
commodity futures contracts are based on inputs that are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, resulting in Level 1 categorization of such measurements.
The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities at September 30, 2010 (in thousands):

Derivatives liability—natural gas swaps
Derivatives liability—foreign exchange contracts

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical
Instruments
(Level 1)
$
37
48

Significant Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)
$
—
—

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)
$

—
—

Total Carrying
Value
$
37
48

Derivatives liability—natural gas swaps reflects the fair value of natural gas swaps associated with the marketing of LNG and natural gas.
Derivatives liability—foreign exchange contracts reflects the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts entered into to hedge the exposure to fluctuations in currency
values.
The estimated fair value of financial instruments, including those financial instruments for which the fair value option was not elected are set forth in the table below. The
carrying amounts reported on our Consolidated Balance Sheets for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, interest receivable, and
accounts payable approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.
Financial Instruments (in thousands):

2013 Notes (1)
2016 Notes, net of discount (1)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes, net of discount (2)
2007 Term Loan (3)
2008 Convertible Loans (3)

$

$

September 30,
2010
Carrying
Estimated
Amount
Fair Value
550,000 $
530,750
1,636,550
1,493,352
175,487
73,705
298,000
292,677
255,097 $
268,124

$

$

December 31,
2009
Carrying
Estimated
Amount
Fair Value
550,000 $
503,250
1,633,029
1,371,744
165,132
95,777
400,000
384,640
293,714 $
299,001

(1)

The fair value of the Senior Notes, net of discount, was based on quotations obtained from broker-dealers who made markets in these and similar instruments as of
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, as applicable.

(2)

The fair value of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes was based on the closing trading prices on September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, as applicable.

(3)

The 2007 Term Loan and 2008 Convertible Loans are closely held by few holders and purchases and sales are infrequent and are conducted on a bilateral basis without
price discovery by us. These loans are not rated and have unique covenants and collateral packages such that comparisons to other instruments would be imprecise.
Moreover, the 2008 Convertible Loans are convertible into shares of Cheniere common stock. Nonetheless, we have provided an estimate of the fair value of these loans
as of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 based on an index of the yield to maturity of CCC rated debt of other companies in the energy sector.

NOTE 12—Income Taxes
We are not presently a taxpayer and have not recorded a net liability for international, federal or state income taxes in any of the periods included in the accompanying
financial statements. Our Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 include no income tax benefits.
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Changes in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits excluding tax interest and penalties are as follows (in thousands):
Balance at December 31, 2009
Additions based on tax position related to current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions of tax positions of prior years
Settlements
Balance at September 30, 2010

$

$

21,877
—
—
(21,877)
—
—

At December 31, 2009, we had $21.9 million of unrecognized federal income tax benefits that pertain to tax positions taken in the prior years for which there is uncertainty
as to the timing of the corresponding tax deductions, but which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain. Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 172(b)(1)(H) and Revenue
Procedure 2009-52, we have elected to apply and utilize an expanded three year net operating loss (“NOL”) carryback on our 2009 United States corporate consolidated tax
return. The expanded three year NOL carryback election eliminates the federal tax consequences related to the uncertainty as to the timing of the unrecognized federal income tax
benefits provided above.
During the fourth quarter of 2008, largely due to the increased level of trading activity in our shares, we believed we had experienced an ownership change within the
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 382 (“Section 382”) that would have subjected approximately $600 million of our existing NOL carryforwards to the annual NOL
utilization limitations. The applicable Section 382 limitation may have affected our ability to fully utilize our existing tax NOL carryforwards. Our ability to fully utilize our
existing tax NOL carryforwards was dependent on increasing the recognition of built-in gains in the five-year period following the above-referenced ownership change.
During the third quarter of 2010, additional information was obtained regarding the trading activity in our shares during 2008. The additional information accelerated the
ownership change date within the provisions of Section 382 from the fourth quarter of 2008 to the first quarter of 2008. A first quarter 2008 ownership change will not affect our
ability to fully utilize our existing tax NOL carryforwards. We will continue to monitor trading activity in our shares which may cause an additional ownership change which may
ultimately affect our ability to fully utilize our existing tax NOL carryforwards.
NOTE 13—Net Income (Loss) Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders
Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders (“EPS”) excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects potential dilution and is computed by dividing net income
(loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period increased by the number of additional common shares
that would have been outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued.
The following table reconciles basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009
(in thousands except for loss per share):
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Dilutive common stock options (1)
Dilutive Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (2)
Dilutive 2008 Convertible Loans (3)
Diluted

55,609
—
—
—
55,609

Basic income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders
Diluted income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders

$
$

13

(0.73)
(0.73)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009

52,945
—
—
—
52,945
$
$

(0.80)
(0.80)

55,316
5,998
—
—
61,314
$
$

0.18
0.16

51,073
—
—
—
51,073
$
$

(2.71)
(2.71)
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(1)

Stock options, phantom stock and unvested stock of 6.2 million shares representing securities that could potentially dilute basic EPS in the future, were not included in the
diluted net loss per share computation for the three-month period ended September 30, 2010, because they would have been anti-dilutive. Stock options, phantom stock
and unvested stock of 10.7 million shares representing securities that could potentially dilute basic EPS in the future, were not included in the diluted net loss per share
computations for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009, because they would have been anti-dilutive.

(2)

Common shares of 5.8 million issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and
2009 were not included in the diluted computation because the computations of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders utilizing the “if-converted”
method would be anti-dilutive.

(3)

Common shares of 49.5 million issuable upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible Loans were not included in the computations of diluted net loss per share for the threeand nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 because the computations of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders utilizing the “if-converted”
method would be anti-dilutive. Common shares of 50.0 million issuable upon conversion of the 2008 Convertible Loans were not included in the computations of diluted
net loss per share for the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009 because the computations of diluted net loss per share attributable to common
stockholders utilizing the “if-converted” method would be anti-dilutive.

NOTE 14—Comprehensive Loss
The following table is a reconciliation of our net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders to our comprehensive income (loss) for the three- and nine-month
periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands):

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
Other comprehensive income (loss) items:
Foreign currency translation
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders

$

$

Three Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
(40,580) $
(42,497)
18
(40,562)

$

71
(42,426)

$

$

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
9,930 $
(138,289)
(52)
9,878

$

113
(138,176)

NOTE 15—Supplemental Cash Flow Information and Disclosures of Non-Cash Transactions
The following table provides supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in thousands):

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized
Construction-in-process and debt issuance additions funded with accrued liabilities

$

14

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
156,874 $
91,204
—
5,592
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NOTE 16—Business Segment Information
We have three operating business segments: LNG receiving terminal business, natural gas pipeline business and LNG and natural gas marketing business. These operating
segments reflect lines of business for which separate financial information is produced internally and are subject to evaluation by our chief operating decision makers in deciding
how to allocate resources.
Our LNG receiving terminal business segment consists of the operational Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, approximately 90.6% owned (at September 30, 2010), in
western Cameron Parish, Louisiana on the Sabine Pass Channel and two other LNG receiving terminals that are in various stages of development at the following locations:
Corpus Christi LNG, 100% owned, near Corpus Christi, Texas; and Creole Trail LNG, 100% owned, at the mouth of the Calcasieu Channel in central Cameron Parish, Louisiana.
Our natural gas pipeline business segment consists of the Creole Trail Pipeline, consisting of 94 miles of natural gas pipeline connecting the Sabine Pass LNG receiving
terminal to numerous interconnection points with existing interstate natural gas pipelines in southwest Louisiana, and other natural gas pipelines in various stages of development
to provide access to North American natural gas markets.
Our LNG and natural gas marketing business segment is seeking to develop a portfolio of long-term, short-term, and spot LNG purchase agreements and focuses on entering
into business relationships for the domestic marketing of natural gas that is imported by Cheniere Marketing as LNG to the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
The following table summarizes revenues, net income (loss) from operations and total assets for each of our operating segments (in thousands):

LNG Receiving
Terminal
As of or for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
Revenues
Intersegment revenues (losses) (2) (3) (4) (5)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Non-cash compensation
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net
Interest income
Goodwill
Total assets
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets
As of or for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009
Revenues
Intersegment revenues (losses) (2) (3) (4) (5)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Non-cash compensation
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net
Interest income
Goodwill
Total assets
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets

Natural
Gas Pipeline

Segments
LNG & Natural
Gas Marketing

Corporate and
Other (1)

Total
Consolidation

$

199,109
128,382
32,008
1,241
235,440
(140,323)
272
76,819
1,948,286
2,279

$

58
255
11,296
375
(16,407)
(33,795)
—
—
557,948
(326)

$

14,703
(127,012)
832
4,517
(129,255)
—
88
—
93,494
(349)

$

2,170
(1,625)
2,730
7,300
(11,658)
(23,926)
48
—
16,750
(1,371)

$

216,040
—
46,866
13,433
78,120
(198,044)
408
76,819
2,616,478
233

$

103,320
188,105
23,041
1,150
228,511
(111,556)
1,008
76,819
2,073,045
110,598

$

100
699
11,054
412
(16,096)
(33,519)
—
—
575,185
(4,111)

$

(10,265)
(182,110)
1,180
3,838
(209,865)
—
195
—
128,637
1,084

$

2,370
(6,694)
3,851
8,005
(21,371)
(31,691)
110
—
12,178
(1,222)

$

95,525
—
39,126
13,405
(18,821)
(176,766)
1,313
76,819
2,789,045
106,349
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LNG Receiving
Terminal
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2010
Revenues
Intersegment revenues (losses) (2) (3) (4) (5)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Non-cash compensation
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net
Interest income
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets
For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2009
Revenues
Intersegment revenues (losses) (2) (3) (4) (5)
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Non-cash compensation
Income (loss) from operations
Interest expense, net
Interest income
Expenditures for additions to long-lived assets

Natural
Gas Pipeline

Segments
LNG & Natural
Gas Marketing

Corporate and
Other (1)

Total
Consolidation

$

65,945
672
10,645
397
34,907
(47,963)
110
342

$

21
—
3,800
121
(5,559)
(11,401)
—
(221)

$

1,533
(276)
260
916
(3,976)
—
44
—

$

749
(396)
925
2,014
(2,989)
(4,535)
15
(1,295)

$

68,248
—
15,630
3,448
22,383
(63,899)
169
(1,174)

$

65,119
61,491
9,024
383
105,433
(40,610)
71
21,015

$

25
268
3,618
166
(5,210)
(11,232)
—
(5,021)

$

(9,609)
(60,427)
449
1,371
(78,319)
—
14
1,015

$

797
(1,332)
1,178
2,852
(3,649)
(9,715)
29
(1,463)

$

56,332
—
14,269
4,772
18,255
(61,557)
114
15,546

(1)

Includes corporate activities, oil and gas exploration, development and exploitation activities and certain intercompany eliminations. Our oil and gas exploration,
development and exploitation operating activities have been included in the corporate and other column due to the lack of a material impact that these activities have on
our consolidated financial statements.

(2)

Intersegment revenues related to our LNG receiving terminal segment are primarily from TUA capacity reservation fee revenues of $125.5 million and $187.6 million and
tug revenues that were received from our LNG and natural gas marketing segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Intersegment
revenues related to our LNG receiving terminal segment are primarily from TUA capacity reservation fee revenues of zero and $62.5 million and tug revenues that were
received from our LNG and natural gas marketing segment for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. These LNG receiving terminal
segment intersegment revenues are eliminated with intersegment expenses in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

(3)

Intersegment revenues related to our natural gas pipeline segment are primarily from transportation fees charged by our natural gas pipeline segment to our LNG receiving
terminal and LNG and natural gas marketing segments to transport natural gas that was regasified at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. These natural gas pipeline
segment intersegment revenues are eliminated with intersegment expenses in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

(4)

Intersegment losses related to our LNG and natural gas marketing segment are primarily from TUA capacity reservation fee expenses of $125.5 million and $187.6
million and tug costs that were incurred from our LNG receiving terminal segment for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Intersegment losses related to our LNG and natural gas marketing segment are primarily from TUA capacity reservation fee expenses of zero and $62.5 million and tug
costs that were incurred from our LNG receiving terminal segment for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The costs of the LNG
and natural gas marketing segment TUA capacity reservation fee expenses are classified as marketing trading gains (losses) as they are considered capacity contracts
related to our energy trading and risk management activities. These LNG and natural gas marketing segment intersegment revenues are eliminated with intersegment
expenses in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

(5)

Intersegment losses related to corporate and other are from various transactions between our LNG receiving terminal, natural gas pipeline and LNG and natural gas
marketing segments in which revenue recorded by one operating segment is eliminated with a non-revenue line item (i.e., operating expense or is capitalized) by the other
operating segment.
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NOTE 17—Share-Based Compensation
We have granted options to purchase common stock to employees, consultants and outside directors under the Cheniere Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated 1997 Stock
Option Plan (“1997 Plan”) and the Cheniere Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended (“2003 Plan”). We recognize our share-based payments to
employees in the consolidated financial statements based on their fair values at the date of grant. The calculated fair value is recognized as expense (net of any capitalization) over
the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures, using the straight-line method.
For the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010, the total share-based compensation expense recognized in our net income attributable to common
stockholders, net of capitalization, was $3.5 million and $13.4 million, respectively. For the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2009, the total share-based
compensation expense recognized in our net loss attributable to common stockholders, net of capitalization, was $4.8 million and $13.4 million, respectively.
The total unrecognized compensation cost at September 30, 2010 relating to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 1997 Plan and 2003 Plan,
before any capitalization, was $12.6 million. The total unrecognized compensation cost at September 30, 2010 is expected to be recognized over 3.0 years, with a weighted average
period of 0.7 years.
We received no proceeds from the exercise of stock options in the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009.
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ITEM 2.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report contains certain statements that are, or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). All statements, other than statements of
historical fact, included herein or incorporated herein by reference are “forward-looking statements.” Included among “forward-looking statements” are, among other things:
· statements relating to the construction or operation of each of our proposed liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) receiving terminals or our proposed pipelines or
liquefaction facilities, or expansions or extensions thereof, including statements concerning the completion or expansion thereof by certain dates or at all, the
costs related thereto and certain characteristics, including amounts of regasification and storage capacity, the number of storage tanks and docks, pipeline
deliverability and the number of pipeline interconnections, if any;
· statements regarding future levels of domestic natural gas production, supply or consumption; future levels of LNG imports into North America; sales of
natural gas in North America; exports of natural gas from North America; and the transportation, other infrastructure or prices related to natural gas, LNG or
other energy sources or hydrocarbon products;
· statements regarding any financing transactions or arrangements, or ability to enter into such transactions or arrangements, whether on the part of Cheniere or at
the project level;
· statements regarding any terminal use agreement (“TUA”) or other commercial arrangements presently contracted, optioned or marketed, or potential
arrangements, to be performed substantially in the future, including any cash distributions and revenues anticipated to be received and the anticipated timing
thereof, and statements regarding the amounts of total LNG regasification, liquefaction or storage capacity that are, or may become, subject to TUAs or other
contracts;
· statements regarding counterparties to our TUAs, construction contracts and other contracts;
· statements regarding any business strategy, any business plans or any other plans, forecasts, projections or objectives, including potential revenues and capital
expenditures, any or all of which are subject to change;
· statements regarding legislative, governmental, regulatory, administrative or other public body actions, requirements, permits, investigations, proceedings or
decisions;
· statements regarding our anticipated LNG and natural gas marketing activities; and
· any other statements that relate to non-historical or future information.
These forward-looking statements are often identified by the use of terms such as “achieve,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast,” “intend,” “plan,”
“potential,” “project,” “propose,” “strategy” and similar terms. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, they involve
assumptions, risks and uncertainties, and these expectations may prove to be incorrect. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only
as of the date of this quarterly report.
As used herein, the terms “Cheniere,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Cheniere Energy, Inc. and its wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries.
Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a variety of factors, including those discussed under “Risk
Factors” in our current report on Form 8-K dated as of August 6, 2010. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in
their entirety by these risk factors. Other than as required under the securities laws, we assume no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements or provide
reasons why actual results may differ.
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Introduction
The following discussion and analysis presents management’s view of our business, financial condition and overall performance and should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes in Item 1. “Consolidated Financial Statements.” This information is intended to provide investors with an
understanding of our past performance, current financial condition and outlook for the future.
Our discussion and analysis includes the following subjects:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Overview of Business
Overview of Significant 2010 Events
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Results of Operations
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Recent Accounting Standards

Overview of Business
We own and operate the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in Louisiana through our 90.6% ownership interest in and management agreements with Cheniere Energy
Partners, L.P. (“Cheniere Partners”), which is a publicly traded partnership we created in 2007. We also own and operate the Creole Trail Pipeline, which interconnects the Sabine
Pass LNG receiving terminal with downstream markets. One of our subsidiaries, Cheniere Marketing, LLC (“Cheniere Marketing”), is marketing liquefied natural gas (“LNG”)
and natural gas and is developing a portfolio of contracts to monetize capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and the Creole Trail Pipeline. We are also in various
stages of developing other LNG receiving terminal and pipeline related projects, which, among other things, will require commercial justification before we make a final
investment decision. In addition, we are engaged to a limited extent in oil and natural gas exploration and development activities in the Gulf of Mexico.
In June 2010, Cheniere Marketing assigned its TUA with Sabine Pass LNG, L.P. (“Sabine Pass”) to Cheniere Energy Investments, LLC (“Investments”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheniere Partners, and concurrently Cheniere Marketing entered into a Variable Capacity Rights Agreement (“VCRA”) with Investments that allows Cheniere
Marketing to continue to monetize the capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal on Investments’ behalf. The impact of this TUA assignment and VCRA on us is
discussed throughout Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The following diagram depicts our abridged organizational
structure after the TUA assignment:
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Overview of Significant 2010 Events
In the first nine months of 2010, and through the date of this Form 10-Q, we continue to execute our strategy to operate and to monetize our capacity at the Sabine Pass
LNG receiving terminal and the Creole Trail pipeline, as well as restructure our financial obligations, including the following:
· In March 2010, Cheniere Marketing entered into various agreements (“LNGCo Agreements”) with JPMorgan LNG Co. (“LNGCo”), an indirect subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co., providing Cheniere Marketing with financial support to source more cargoes of LNG than it could source on a stand-alone basis;
· In June 2010, we used $102.0 million of cash received from the sale of our 30% limited partner interest in Freeport LNG Development, L.P. (“Freeport LNG”) to
prepay a portion of the 2007 Term Loan described below;
· In June 2010, we used $63.6 million of cash and cash equivalents held in a TUA reserve account established in connection with the 2008 Convertible Loans
described below to prepay $60.9 million of accrued interest on, and $2.7 million of principal of, the 2008 Convertible Loans as a result of the assignment of the
Cheniere Marketing TUA;
· In June 2010, Cheniere Partners initiated a project to add liquefaction services at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal that would transform the terminal into
a bi-directional facility capable of liquefying natural gas and exporting LNG in addition to importing and regasifying foreign-sourced LNG; and
· In September 2010, Sabine Pass Liquefaction, LLC, a subsidiary of Cheniere Partners, received approval from the U.S. Department of Energy to export 16.0
million tonnes per annum ("mtpa") of LNG, equivalent to approximately 2 billion cubic feet per day (“Bcf/d”), produced from domestic natural gas over a thirty year
period starting not later than September 2020. This license authorizes Sabine Pass Liquefaction, LLC to export LNG to purchasers in countries which have a free
trade agreement with the United States. A second application to expand the authorization granted in the first license to all World Trade Organization member
countries, and to any other country with which the U.S. may conduct trade, has been filed and is in a 60-day public comment period which ends on December 13,
2010.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Although consolidated for financial reporting, Cheniere, Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners operate with independent capital structures. With respect to Sabine Pass
LNG and Cheniere Partners, the cash needs of each entity have been met since inception with a combination of borrowings, issuance of units and operating cash flows. We expect
the cash needs for Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners over the next 12 months will be met through operating cash flows and existing unrestricted cash. With respect to
Cheniere, we have historically satisfied cash needs by utilizing existing unrestricted cash, management fees from Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners, distributions from our
investment in Cheniere Partners, distributions from the 30% limited partner interest in Freeport LNG and operating cash flows from our pipeline and LNG and natural gas
marketing businesses.
The following table presents (in thousands) Cheniere's restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents for each portion of our capital structure as of September 30,
2010, with all restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents held by Cheniere Partners and Sabine Pass LNG being deemed restricted by Cheniere as to usage or withdrawal:

Sabine
Pass LNG, L.P.
$
—
142,501
$
142,501

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total

Cheniere
Energy
Partners, L.P.
$
—
51,850
$
51,850

Other Cheniere
Energy, Inc.
$
81,515
4,772
$
86,287

Consolidated
Cheniere
Energy,
Inc.
$
81,515
199,123
$
280,638

As of September 30, 2010, we had unrestricted cash and cash, accounts receivable and other working capital from LNG and natural gas marketing activities of $89.5
million that will be available to Cheniere, which excludes cash and cash equivalents available to Cheniere Partners, a publicly traded partnership in which we own a 90.6% interest,
and Sabine Pass LNG, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere Partners. In addition, we had restricted cash and cash equivalents of $199.1 million, which were designated for the
following purposes: $5.2 million for Sabine Pass LNG’s working capital; $51.9 million for Cheniere Partners’ working capital; $137.3 million for interest payments related to the
Senior Notes described below; and $4.8 million for other restricted purposes.
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As of September 30, 2010, we reclassified $255.1 million of debt from long-term liability to current liability because the lenders of our 2008 Convertible Loans can
require prepayment of the loans within 12 months of September 30, 2010 (see Note 10—“Debt and Debt—Related Parties” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information). If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require a prepayment, they must provide 90 days notice between May 18, 2011 and June 16, 2011. If the
lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require prepayment, we believe we will have sufficient unrestricted cash, liquid assets, cash generated from our operations and access to
capital markets to satisfy the obligation and fund our operations until our next maturity in May, 2012. In order to satisfy our first required principal payment in May 2012, we will
need to continue improving our capital structure, which may be accomplished by entering into commercial agreements, refinancing our existing indebtedness, issuing equity or
other securities, selling assets or through a combination of the foregoing, which will be dependent on factors such as worldwide natural gas and capital market conditions (see
“Risk Factors” in our current report on Form 8-K dated as of August 6, 2010).
In the first nine months of 2010, we have accomplished the following items that we believe improve our liquidity and strengthen our capital structure:
· In March 2010, our liquidity position was improved by entering into the LNGCo Agreements, which monetized our then-existing LNG inventory of 2,415,000
MMBtu, may reduce our working capital requirements to operate our marketing business by allowing us to source more cargos of LNG than we could source on
a stand-alone basis, and may provide additional financial support to commercialize our capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and Creole Trail
Pipeline;
· In May 2010, our capital structure was improved by the pre-payment of $102.0 million of principal of the 2007 Term Loan as a result of the sale of our 30%
interest in Freeport LNG. The principal pre-payment also reduced the amount of annual interest payable under the 2007 Term Loan by $10.1 million, offsetting
or potentially exceeding any distributions we may have received from our 30% interest in Freeport LNG as a source of liquidity; and
· In June 2010, our liquidity and capital structure were improved by assigning Cheniere Marketing’s TUA to a subsidiary of Cheniere Partners and entering into
related transactions. We used the restricted cash that was previously reserved to fund Cheniere Marketing’s TUA payment obligation to prepay $60.9 million in
accrued interest and $2.7 million of principal on the 2008 Convertible Loans. As a result of the TUA assignment and related transactions, we improved our
annual cash flow by $5 million to $16 million on a net basis:
o the assignment of the TUA eliminated the need for us to use distributions we receive from Cheniere Partners to fund Cheniere Marketing’s TUA
payment obligation, and therefore distributions we receive will be available to us as unrestricted cash;
o the elimination of Cheniere Marketing’s TUA payments reduces the cash available to Cheniere Partners to make distributions on the subordinated units
that we own; and
o we amended our management services agreement with Cheniere Partners to change our fixed management fee to a variable fee dependent on cash
available to Cheniere Partners after distributions to its common unitholders and general partner, and therefore the cash we receive for managing
Cheniere Partners may be less than it was prior to the amendment.
LNG Receiving Terminal Business
Cheniere Partners
Our ownership interest in the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is held through Cheniere Partners. We own approximately 90.6% of Cheniere Partners in the form of
10,891,357 common units, 135,383,831 subordinated units, and a 2% general partner interest, equivalent to 3,302,045 units. Cheniere Partners owns a 100% interest in Sabine Pass
LNG, which is operating the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
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We receive quarterly distributions from Cheniere Partners for our ownership interests and we receive management fees for managing Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere
Partners. For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010 we received $13.9 million in distributions from our common units, $115.1 million from our subordinated units and
$3.0 million from our general partnership interest. We also received $5.4 million under our management agreements with Cheniere Partners and $5.9 million under our
management agreements with Sabine Pass LNG during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010.
In June 2010, we and Cheniere Partners amended, effective as of July 1, 2010, the fee structure for the various general and administrative services provided by us for
Cheniere Partners’ benefit and changed it from a fixed fee to a variable fee. The amended and restated services agreement provides that fees will be paid quarterly from Cheniere
Partners’ unrestricted cash and cash equivalents remaining after making distributions to the common unitholders and the general partner in respect of each quarter and retaining
certain reserves. Our ability to receive management fees from Cheniere Partners is dependent on our ability to, among other things, manage Cheniere Partners’ and Sabine Pass
LNG’s operating and administrative expenses, monetize the 2.0 Bcf/d regasification capacity held by Investments (as discussed below) and develop new projects through either
internal development or acquisition to increase cash flow. The fixed management fees payable by Sabine Pass LNG remain unchanged.
Pursuant to the assignment of Cheniere Marketing’s TUA to Investments, Cheniere Marketing will no longer make the approximately $250 million per year of payments to
Sabine Pass LNG, and Cheniere Partners will not make distributions on our subordinated units unless it generates additional cash flow for Sabine Pass LNG’s excess capacity or its
new business. Therefore, distributions to us on our subordinated units and conversion of the subordinated units into common units will depend upon future business development.
Concurrent with the TUA assignment, Investments entered into the VCRA with Cheniere Marketing. Under the terms of the VCRA, Cheniere Marketing will continue to be
responsible for monetizing the capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and is obligated to pay Investments 80% of the expected gross margin of each cargo of LNG it
arranges for delivery to the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. To the extent payments from Cheniere Marketing to Investments under the VCRA or new Cheniere Partners
business development increase Cheniere Partners’ available cash in excess of the common unit and general partner distributions and certain reserves, the cash would be distributed
to us in the form of distributions on our subordinated units. During the term of the VCRA, Cheniere Marketing is responsible for the payment of taxes and new regulatory costs
under the TUA. We have guaranteed all of Cheniere Marketing’s payment obligations under the VCRA.
Sabine Pass LNG Receiving Terminal
The entire approximately 4.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal has been fully reserved under three 20-year, firm commitment
TUAs. 2.0 Bcf/d is contracted with unaffiliated third parties and 2.0 Bcf/d is contracted with Investments. Each of the three customers at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal
must make the full contracted amount of capacity reservation fee payments under its TUA whether or not it uses any of its reserved capacity. Capacity reservation fee TUA
payments are made by Sabine Pass LNG’s third-party customers as follows:
· Total Gas and Power North America, Inc. (formerly known as Total LNG USA, Inc.) (“Total”) has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification
capacity and has agreed to make monthly capacity payments to Sabine Pass LNG aggregating approximately $125 million per year for 20 years that
commenced on April 1, 2009. Total, S.A. has guaranteed Total’s obligations under its TUA up to $2.5 billion, subject to certain exceptions; and
· Chevron U.S.A., Inc. (“Chevron”) has reserved approximately 1.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity and has agreed to make monthly capacity payments to
Sabine Pass LNG aggregating approximately $125 million per year for 20 years that commenced on July 1, 2009. Chevron Corporation has guaranteed
Chevron’s obligations under its TUA up to 80% of the fees payable by Chevron.
In June 2010, Sabine Pass LNG entered into amendments of the TUAs with Total and Chevron for the purpose of clarifying various operational rights and obligations
of the parties. In connection with these amendments, Total and Chevron have agreed to minimum pro rata inventory obligations as necessary to ensure cryogenic readiness of
the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and to mitigate the effects of inventory weathering. In addition, Total and Chevron have each agreed to daily boil-off gas re-delivery
obligations, service fees related to the compression services associated with minimization of their respective daily boil-off gas re-delivery obligations and pro-rata obligations
for the incremental fuel associated with these compression services. Additional items clarified in these amendments include the recognition of inventory transfers between
parties and procedural obligations related to daily and monthly informational postings, gas re-delivery and vessel nominations and delivery point flexibility.
Each of Total and Chevron previously paid Sabine Pass LNG $20.0 million in nonrefundable advance capacity reservation fees, which are being amortized over a 10-year
period as a reduction of each customer’s regasification capacity reservation fees payable under its respective TUA.
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In November 2006, Cheniere Marketing reserved approximately 2.0 Bcf/d of regasification capacity under a TUA and was required to make capacity payments aggregating
approximately $250 million per year for the period from January 1, 2009, through at least September 30, 2028. In June 2010, Cheniere Marketing assigned its TUA with Sabine
Pass LNG to Investments, including all of its rights, titles, interests, obligations and liabilities in and under the TUA and will therefore no longer be obligated to make the
approximately $250 million per year of payments to Sabine Pass LNG. In connection with the assignment, Cheniere’s guarantee of Cheniere Marketing’s obligations under the
TUA was terminated and Cheniere Partners provided a guarantee of Investments’ obligations under the TUA. Investments is required to make capacity payments aggregating
approximately $250 million per year through at least September 30, 2028; however, the revenue earned by Sabine Pass LNG and the capacity payments under the TUA will be
eliminated upon consolidation of our financial statements.
Under each of these TUAs, Sabine Pass LNG is entitled to retain 2% of the LNG delivered for the customer’s account, which Sabine Pass LNG will use primarily as fuel
for revaporization and self-generated power at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
Other LNG Receiving Terminals
As discussed above, in May 2010, we sold our 30% limited partnership interest in Freeport LNG. However, prior to the sale, Freeport LNG made aggregate distributions to
us of $24.0 million since inception.
We will contemplate making final investment decisions to construct our Corpus Christi and Creole Trail LNG receiving terminal projects upon, among other things,
entering into acceptable commercial and financing arrangements for the applicable project. We do not expect to spend significant funds on these projects in the near-term.
Liquefaction Project
As mentioned above, in June 2010, Cheniere Partners initiated a project to add liquefaction services at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal that would transform the
terminal into a bi-directional facility capable of liquefying natural gas and exporting LNG in addition to importing and regasifying foreign-sourced LNG. As currently
contemplated, the liquefaction project would be designed and permitted for up to four modular LNG trains, each with a peak processing capacity of up to approximately 0.7 Bcf/d
of natural gas and an average liquefaction capacity of approximately 3.5 mtpa. The initial project phase is anticipated to include two modular trains and the capacity to process on
average approximately 1.2 Bcf/d of pipeline quality natural gas. We intend to enter into contracts for at least 0.5 Bcf/d of natural gas liquefaction capacity per train in support of
reaching final investment decision regarding the development of the project. Cheniere Partners believes that the time and cost required to develop its proposed liquefaction project
would be materially lessened by Sabine Pass LNG’s existing large acreage and infrastructure (docks, LNG storage tanks, power generation assets and pipeline
connections). Development costs incurred during the assessment of this project will be funded by Cheniere Partners using its existing funds. Cheniere Partners will contemplate
making a final investment decision to commence construction of the liquefaction facilities upon, among other things, achieving regulatory approval and entering into acceptable
commercial and financing arrangements. We anticipate LNG export could commence as early as 2015.
Natural Gas Pipeline Business
Phase 1 of the Creole Trail Pipeline, consisting of 94 miles of natural gas pipeline, had been constructed and is currently in-service and operating.
We will contemplate making a final investment decision to construct Phase 2 of the Creole Trail Pipeline, the Corpus Christi Pipeline, the Cheniere Southern Trail
Pipeline and the Burgos Hub Project upon, among other things, receiving all required authorizations to construct and operate the applicable pipeline (and storage facility in the
case of Burgos Hub), to the extent not already obtained, and entering into acceptable commercial and financing arrangements for the applicable project. We do not expect to spend
significant funds on these projects in the near-term.
As discussed above, we believe that we have sufficient cash, other working capital and cash generated from our operations to operate Phase 1 of our Creole Trail Pipeline
until the earliest date when principal payments on our outstanding indebtedness may be required. The lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans can require prepayment of the loans
between August 16, 2011 and September 14, 2011. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans do not require the principal payment in 2011, the earliest date that principal
payments will be required is May 31, 2012, which is the maturity date of the 2007 Term Loan.
LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Business
The accounting treatment for LNG inventory differs from the treatment for derivative positions such that the economics of Cheniere Marketing’s activities are not
transparent in the consolidated financial statements until all LNG inventory is sold and all
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derivative positions are settled. Our LNG inventory is recorded as an asset at cost and is subject to lower of cost or market (“LCM”) adjustments at the end of each reporting
period. The LCM adjustment market price is based on period-end natural gas spot prices, and any gain or loss from a LCM adjustment is recorded in our earnings at the end of
each period. Revenue and cost of goods sold are not recognized in our earnings until the regasified LNG is sold. Our unrealized derivatives positions at the end of each period
extend into the future to hedge the cash flow from future sales of our LNG inventory or to take market positions and hedge exposure associated with LNG and natural gas. These
positions are measured at fair value, and we record the gains and losses from the change in their fair value currently in earnings. Thus, earnings from changes in the fair value of
our derivatives may not be offset by losses from LCM adjustments to our LNG inventory because the LCM adjustments that may be made to LNG inventory are based on periodend spot prices that are different from the time periods of the prices used to fair value our derivatives. Any losses from changes in the fair value of our derivatives will not be offset
by gains until the regasified LNG is actually sold.
Management evaluates the performance of its LNG and natural gas marketing business activities differently than the measure calculated and presented in accordance with
GAAP in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Management calculates an Adjusted LNG and natural gas revenue non-GAAP measure to assess the performance of the
LNG and natural gas marketing business activities during each period. As our LNG and natural gas marketing business has entered into natural gas swaps that hedge the cash
flows from the future sale of LNG inventory and to take market positions and hedge exposure associated with LNG and natural gas, management believes that the presentation of
the Adjusted LNG and natural gas revenue non-GAAP measure provides a meaningful indicator of the performance of our LNG and natural gas marketing business activities
during the stated period.
The table below shows the differences between the components of both the LNG and natural gas marketing revenue GAAP measure (presented in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations) and the Adjusted LNG and natural gas revenue non-GAAP measure (in thousands):

Physical natural gas sales
Cost of LNG
Realized natural gas derivative gain
Unrealized natural gas derivative gain
Other energy trading activities and adjustments
LNG and natural gas revenue

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
Adjusted LNG and
LNG and natural gas
natural gas marketing
marketing revenue
revenue
(GAAP measure)
(Non-GAAP measure)
$
36,485
$
36,485
$
(29,761)
(41,261)
2,838
2,838
743
743
4,398
4,686
$
14,703
$
3,491
$

Difference
—
11,500 (a)
—
—
(288)
11,212

(a) The Cost of LNG GAAP measure takes into consideration only the cost of LNG that was regasified and sold during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010, using
the weighted average cost method for LNG inventory. The Cost of LNG non-GAAP measure represents the marketing revenue, net of historical cost of LNG, expected from
future LNG inventory sales based on published forward natural gas price curve prices corresponding to the future months when the regasified LNG is planned to be sold.
Under GAAP measurement, our LNG and natural gas marketing revenue was $14.7 million for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010, but only $3.5 million was
generated by marketing activities during the period. We believe that the Adjusted LNG and natural gas marketing revenue non-GAAP measure is a meaningful indicator of
performance of our LNG and natural gas marketing business activities during a stated period.
LNGCo Agreements
In March 2010, Cheniere Marketing entered into the LNGCo Agreements with LNGCo under which Cheniere Marketing has agreed to develop and maintain commercial
and trading opportunities in the LNG industry and present any such opportunities exclusively to LNGCo. Cheniere Marketing also agreed to provide, or arrange for the provision
of, all of the operations and administrative services required by LNGCo in connection with any LNG cargoes purchased by LNGCo, including negotiating agreements and
transporting, receiving, storing, hedging and regasifying LNG cargoes. Cheniere Marketing does not have the authority to contractually bind LNGCo under the LNGCo
Agreements. In the event LNGCo declines to purchase an LNG cargo presented to it by Cheniere Marketing under the LNGCo Agreements, Cheniere Marketing may pursue the
opportunity on its own behalf or present it to third parties. The term of the LNGCo Agreements is two years; however, either party may terminate without penalty at the end of
one year. In return for the services to be provided by Cheniere Marketing, LNGCo will pay a fixed fee to Cheniere Marketing and may pay additional fees dependent upon the
gross margins of each transaction and the aggregate revenue earned during the term of the LNGCo Agreements.
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During the three- and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010, we recognized $2.3 million and $5.4 million, respectively, of marketing and trading revenues from
LNGCo. As of September 30, 2010, Cheniere Marketing’s maximum exposure to loss relating to LNGCo was $3.7 million related to margin deposits that have been paid to
LNGCo and fixed fee and gross margin revenue receivables earned as of September 30, 2010. A portion of this $3.7 million represents our fixed fee receivable and is reported as
accounts and interest receivable, and the remaining portion is reported as other non-current assets and is to be paid to Cheniere Marketing upon the completion or termination of
the LNGCo Agreements.
As discussed above, we believe that we have sufficient cash, other working capital and cash generated from our operations to fund our LNG and natural gas marketing
business until the earliest date when principal payments on our outstanding indebtedness may be required. The lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans can require prepayment of
the loans between August 16, 2011 and September 14, 2011. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans do not require the principal payment in 2011, the earliest date that
principal payments will be required is May 31, 2012, which is the maturity date of the 2007 Term Loan.
Corporate and Other Activities
We are required to maintain corporate general and administrative functions to serve our business activities described above. As discussed above, we believe that we have
sufficient cash, other working capital and cash generated from our operations to fund our operating expenses and other cash requirements until the earliest date when principal
payments on our outstanding indebtedness may be required. The lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans can require prepayment of the loans between August 16, 2011 and
September 14, 2011. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans do not require the principal payment in 2011, the earliest date that principal payments will be required is May
31, 2012, which is the maturity date of the 2007 Term Loan.
Although our focus is primarily on the development of LNG-related businesses, we continue to be involved to a limited extent in oil and gas exploration, development and
exploration activities in the shallow waters of the Gulf of Mexico. We do not anticipate significant cash expenditures related to these activities and expect our cash inflows from oil
and natural gas production to decrease as reserves are produced.
Sources and Uses of Cash
The following table summarizes the sources and uses of our cash and cash equivalents for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands). The
table presents capital expenditures on a cash basis; therefore, these amounts differ from the amounts of capital expenditures, including accruals, that are referred to elsewhere in this
report. Additional discussion of these items follows the table.
Nine Months Ended September 30,
2010
2009
Sources of cash and cash equivalents
Proceeds from sale of limited partnership investment
Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
Distribution from limited partnership investment in Freeport LNG
Other
Total sources of cash and cash equivalents

$

Uses of cash and cash equivalents
Debt repurchases
Operating cash flow
Distributions to non-controlling interest
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline construction-in-process, net
Other
Total uses of cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period

$

Proceeds from sale of limited partnership investment
In May 2010, we sold our 30% interest in Freeport LNG to institutional investors for net proceeds of $104.3 million.
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104,330
26,414
3,900
291
134,935

$

—
219,727
9,000
—
228,727

(104,681)
(11,631)
(19,794)
(2,805)
(2,881)
(141,792)

(30,030)
(94,226)
(19,794)
(97,991)
(1,524)
(243,565)

(6,857)
88,372
81,515

(14,838)
102,192
87,354

$

Use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010, the $26.4 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents were used primarily to make distributions of $19.8
million to non-controlling interests, repurchase debt of $2.7 million, pay for construction activities at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal of $3.6 million and other items of
$0.3 million.
During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, $219.7 million of restricted cash and cash equivalents was used to pay for scheduled interest payments and
construction activities at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. Under the Sabine Pass Indenture, a portion of the proceeds from the Senior Notes was initially required to be
used for scheduled interest payments through May 2009 and to fund the cost to complete construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal. Due to these restrictions
imposed by the Sabine Pass Indenture, the proceeds from the Senior Notes are not presented as cash and cash equivalents. When proceeds from the Senior Notes that have been
designated as restricted cash and cash equivalents are used, they are presented as a source of cash and cash equivalents. The decreased use of restricted cash and cash equivalents
during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010, primarily resulted from substantially completing construction of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal during the third
quarter of 2009.
Distribution from limited partnership investment in Freeport LNG
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we received $3.9 million and $9.0 million of distributions from Freeport LNG. In June 2010, we sold our
investment in Freeport LNG and therefore will not receive distributions in the future.
Debt Repurchases
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we used $104.7 million and $30.0 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents to repurchase a portion
of our long-term debt.
In the second quarter of 2010, we used $102.0 million of the net proceeds from the sale of our limited partner interest in Freeport LNG to partially prepay the 2007 Term
Loan. In addition, as a result of the assignment of the Cheniere Marketing TUA in the second quarter of 2010, we used $2.7 million to partially prepay the 2008 Convertible Loans.
In the second quarter of 2009, we used a combination of $30.0 million cash and cash equivalents and 4.0 million common shares to prepay $120.4 million aggregate
principal amount of our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.
Operating cash flow
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we used $11.6 million and $94.2 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents for operating
activities. Net cash used in operations related primarily to the general administrative overhead costs, pipeline operations costs, LNG and natural gas marketing overhead; offset by
earnings from our LNG and natural gas marketing business.
Distributions to non-controlling interest
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, Cheniere Partners distributed $19.8 million to its non-affiliated common unitholders.
LNG receiving terminal and pipeline construction-in-process, net
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, capital expenditures for our LNG receiving terminals and pipeline projects were $2.8 million and $98.0
million, respectively. Our capital expenditures decreased in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010 as a result of the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass
LNG receiving terminal during the third quarter of 2009.
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Debt Agreements
The following table (in thousands) and the explanatory paragraphs following the table summarize our debt agreements as of September 30, 2010.
Sabine
Pass LNG, L.P.
Current debt (including related parties):
2008 Convertible Loans
Long-term debt (including related parties)
Senior Notes
2007 Term Loan
2008 Convertible Loans
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
Total long-term debt
Debt discount (including related parties)
Senior Notes (1)
Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes (2)
Total debt discount
Long-term debt (including related parties), net of discount

Cheniere Energy
Partners, L.P.

Other Cheniere
Energy, Inc.

Consolidated
Cheniere Energy,
Inc.

$

—

$

—

$

255,097 $

255,097

$

2,215,500 $
—
—
—
2,215,500

—
—
—
—
—

$

—
$
298,000
—
204,630
502,630

2,215,500
298,000
—
204,630
2,718,130

(28,950)
—
(28,950)
2,186,550 $

—
—
—
—

—
(29,143)
(29,143)
473,487 $

(28,950)
(29,143)
(58,093)
2,660,037

$

$

(1)

In September 2008, Sabine Pass LNG issued an additional $183.5 million, par value, of 2016 Notes. The net proceeds from the additional issuance of the 2016 Notes
were $145.0 million. The difference between the par value and the net proceeds is the debt discount, which will be amortized through the maturity of the 2016 Notes.

(2)

Effective as of January 1, 2009, we are required to record a debt discount on our Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes. The unamortized discount will be amortized
through the maturity of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes.

Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
In July 2005, we consummated a private offering of $325.0 million aggregate principal amount of Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes to qualified institutional buyers
pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act. The notes bear interest at a rate of 2¼% per year. Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on February 1 and
August 1 of each year. The notes are convertible at any time into our common stock under certain circumstances at an initial conversion rate of 28.2326 per $1,000 principal
amount of the notes, which is equal to a conversion price of approximately $35.42 per share. As of September 30, 2010, no holders had elected to convert their notes. We may
redeem some or all of the notes on or before August 1, 2012, for cash equal to 100% of the principal plus any accrued and unpaid interest if in the previous 10 trading days the
volume-weighted average price of our common stock exceeds $53.13, subject to adjustment, for at least five consecutive trading days. In the event of such redemption, we will
make an additional payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled interest payments through August 1, 2012, discounted at the U.S. Treasury securities rate plus 50
basis points. The indenture governing the notes contains customary reporting requirements.
As discussed in Note 10—“Debt and Debt—Related Parties” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we adopted on January 1, 2009 an accounting standard that
requires issuers of certain convertible debt instruments to separately account for the liability component and the equity component represented by the embedded conversion option
in a manner that will reflect that entity’s nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest costs are recognized in subsequent periods. The fair value of the embedded conversion
option at the date of issuance of the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes was determined to be $134.0 million and has been recorded as a debt discount to the Convertible Senior
Unsecured Notes, with a corresponding adjustment to additional paid-in capital. At September 30, 2010, the unamortized debt discount to the Convertible Senior Unsecured Notes
was $29.1 million.
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Sabine Pass LNG Senior Notes
Sabine Pass LNG has issued an aggregate principal amount of $2,215.5 million of Senior Notes consisting of $550.0 million of 7¼% Senior Secured Notes due 2013 and
$1,665.5 million of 7½% Senior Secured Notes due 2016. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 30 and November 30 of each year. The Senior
Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in all of Sabine Pass LNG’s equity interests and substantially all of its operating assets. Under the Sabine Pass
Indenture governing the Senior Notes, except for permitted tax distributions, Sabine Pass LNG may not make distributions until certain conditions are satisfied: there must be on
deposit in an interest payment account an amount equal to one-sixth of the semi-annual interest payment multiplied by the number of elapsed months since the last semi-annual
interest payment, and there must be on deposit in a permanent debt service reserve fund an amount equal to one semi-annual interest payment of $82.4 million. Distributions are
permitted only after satisfying the foregoing funding requirements, a fixed charge coverage ratio test of 2:1 and other conditions specified in the Sabine Pass Indenture.
As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, we classified $74.6 million and $72.9 million, respectively, as part of long-term debt—related parties on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets because related parties held these portions of the Senior Notes.
2007 Term Loan
In May 2007, Cheniere Subsidiary Holdings, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheniere, entered into a $400.0 million credit agreement (“2007 Term Loan”). Borrowings
under the 2007 Term Loan generally bear interest at a fixed rate of 9¾% per annum. Interest is calculated on the unpaid principal amount of the 2007 Term Loan outstanding and is
payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. The 2007 Term Loan will mature on May 31, 2012. The 2007 Term Loan is
secured by a pledge of our 135,383,831 subordinated units in Cheniere Partners.
In May 2010, we sold our 30% interest in Freeport LNG to institutional investors for net proceeds of $104.3 million. The net proceeds from the sale were used to prepay
$102.0 million of the 2007 Term Loan in May 2010 (See Note 8—“Investment in Limited Partnership” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information). As of September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, $298.0 million and $400.0 million, respectively, were outstanding under the 2007 Term Loan and were included
in long-term debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
2008 Convertible Loans
In August 2008, we entered into a credit agreement pursuant to which we obtained $250.0 million in convertible term loans (“2008 Convertible Loans”). The 2008
Convertible Loans will mature in 2018, but the lenders can require prepayment of the loans for 30 days following August 15, 2011, 2013 and 2015, and upon a change of control.
The 2008 Convertible Loans bear interest at a fixed rate of 12% per annum, except during the occurrence of an event of default during which time the rate of interest will be
14% per annum. Interest is due semi-annually on the last business day of January and July. At our option, until August 15, 2011, accrued interest may be added to the principal on
each semi-annual interest date. The aggregate amount of all accrued interest to August 15, 2011 will be payable on the maturity date. The 2008 Convertible Loans are secured by
Cheniere’s rights and fees payable under management services agreements with Sabine Pass LNG and Cheniere Partners, by Cheniere’s 10.9 million common units in Cheniere
Partners, by the equity and non-real property assets of Cheniere’s pipeline entities, by the equity of various other subsidiaries and certain other assets and subsidiary guarantees.
The outstanding principal amount may be exchanged for newly-created Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Series B Preferred Stock”), with
voting rights limited to the equivalent of 10,125,000 shares of common stock. The exchange ratio is one share of Series B Preferred Stock for each $5,000 of outstanding
borrowings, subject to adjustment. The exchange ratio will be adjusted in the event we make certain distributions of cash, shares or property on our shares of Cheniere common
stock. The aggregate Series B Preferred Stock is exchangeable into shares of Cheniere common stock at a price of $5.00 per share pursuant to a broadly syndicated offering. We
are required to file a registration statement to register the Series B Preferred Stock upon demand by the majority of the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock. Such holders also
have the right to demand registration of the shares of common stock into which the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible. No portion of any accrued interest is eligible for
conversion into Series B Preferred Stock.
As long as the 2008 Convertible Loans are exchangeable for shares of Series B Preferred Stock or shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the holders of a
majority of the 2008 Convertible Loans and Series B Preferred Stock, acting together, have the right to nominate two individuals to the Company’s Board of Directors, and
together with the Board of Directors, a third nominee, who would be an independent director. In addition, one of the lenders is Scorpion Capital Partners LP (“Scorpion”), an
affiliate of one of the Company’s directors.
In June 2010, we amended the 2008 Convertible Loans to permit all funds on deposit in a TUA reserve account to be applied to the prepayment of the accrued interest
outstanding under the 2008 Convertible Loans, with any remainder to be applied to the
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prepayment of the principal balance of the 2008 Convertible Loans. As a result, $63.6 million from the TUA Reserve Account was used to prepay $60.9 million of accrued interest
and $2.7 million of principal.
As of September 30, 2010, we reclassified $255.1 million of debt from long-term liability to current liability because the lenders of our 2008 Convertible Loans can require
prepayment of the loans within 12 months of September 30, 2010. If the lenders of the 2008 Convertible Loans require a prepayment, they must provide 90 days notice no later
than June 16, 2011 (See Note 2—“Liquidity” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information). As of September 30, 2010, $242.6 million was
outstanding under the 2008 Convertible Loans and was included in current debt-related parties on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. As of December 31, 2009, $280.4 million was
outstanding under the 2008 Convertible Loans and was included in long-term debt—related parties on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Issuances of Common Stock
In the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, no shares of our common stock were issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options. In the nine-month
periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we issued 420,000 shares and 326,000 shares, respectively, of non-vested restricted stock to new and existing employees. In the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, we issued 4.0 million shares of our common stock as part of the consideration used to repurchase a portion of the Convertible
Senior Unsecured Notes.
Results of Operations
Three-Month Period Ended September 30, 2010 vs. Three-Month Period Ended September 30, 2009
Overall Operations
Our consolidated net loss attributable to common stockholders decreased $1.9 million, from a net loss of $42.5 million, or $0.80 per share (basic and diluted), in the threemonth period ended September 30, 2009 to a net loss of $40.6 million, or $0.73 per share basic and diluted, in the three-month period ended September 30, 2010. This decrease in
net loss was primarily a result of increased marketing revenue that was partially offset by increased development expense related to Cheniere Partners’ proposed liquefaction
project, increased interest expense, increased operations and maintenance expense, and increased depreciation.
LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Revenue
Operating results from marketing and trading activities are presented on a net basis on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Marketing and trading revenues represent
the margin earned on the purchase and transportation costs of LNG and subsequent sales of natural gas to third parties. Our marketing and trading revenues also include pretax
derivative gains/losses and inventory lower-of-cost-or-market adjustments, if any. See table below (in thousands) for itemized comparison of each major type of energy trading
and risk management activity:
Three Month Period Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
Physical natural gas sales, net of costs and inventory write-down
$
— $
(14,761)
Gain (loss) from derivatives
(675)
5,203
Other energy trading activities
2,208
(51)
Total LNG and natural gas marketing gain (loss)
$
1,533 $
(9,609)
Marketing and trading revenues increased $11.1 million, from a $9.6 million loss in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 to a $1.5 million gain in the threemonth period ended September 30, 2010. The increase in natural gas marketing and trading revenue was primarily a result of the different marketing and trading activities we were
engaged in during the three-month period ended September 30, 2010 including our agreements with LNGCo that became effective April 1, 2010, compared to the same period of
2009 during which we were purchasing, transporting and unloading commercial LNG cargoes into the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and used certain hedging strategies to
maximize margins on these cargoes. The $9.6 million loss in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 primarily resulted from lower of cost or market write-downs to our
inventory.
LNG Receiving Terminal and Pipeline Development Expense
Development expense increased $4.8 million, from $0.1 million in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $4.9 million in the three-month period ended
September 30, 2010. This increase resulted from the costs incurred to develop liquefaction services at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
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Interest Expense, net
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, increased $2.3 million, from $61.6 million in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $63.9 million in the threemonth period ended September 30, 2010. This increase in interest expense resulted from the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in the third
quarter of 2009, which reduced the amount of interest expense that could be capitalized.
LNG Receiving Terminal and Pipeline Operating Expense
Our LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expenses include costs incurred to operate the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and the Creole Trail Pipeline.
Operating and maintenance expense increased $1.1 million, from $8.0 million in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $9.1 million in the three-month period
ended September 30, 2010. This increase primarily resulted from the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal with approximately 4.0 Bcf/d of
total sendout capacity and five LNG storage tanks with approximately 16.9 Bcf of aggregate storage capacity in the third quarter of 2009.
Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization Expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense (“DD&A”) increased $2.3 million, from $14.3 million in the three-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $16.6
million in the three-month period ended September 30, 2010. This increase resulted from beginning to depreciate the costs associated with achieving full operability of the Sabine
Pass LNG receiving terminal in the third quarter of 2009.
Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2010 vs. Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2009
Overall Operations
Our consolidated net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders increased $148.2 million, from a net loss of ($138.3) million, or ($2.71) per share (basic and
diluted), in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 to net income of $9.9 million, or $0.18 per share basic and $0.16 per share diluted, in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2010. This increase was primarily due to a gain on the sale of our 30% interest in Freeport LNG, increased LNG receiving terminal revenues as a result of the
Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal starting commercial operations during 2009, and increased marketing revenues that were partially offset by increased depreciation, increased
interest expense, net, increased development expense related to Cheniere Partners’ proposed liquefaction project, and increased LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating
expenses.
Gain on Sale of Equity Method Investment
In May 2010, we sold our 30% interest in Freeport LNG and recognized a net $128.3 million gain. The gain was comprised of net proceeds received of $104.3 million
and $24.0 million of distributions in excess of income.
LNG Receiving Terminal Revenue
LNG receiving terminal revenues increased $95.8 million, from $103.3 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $199.1 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2010. This increase primarily resulted from the commencement of services under the Total TUA beginning on April 1, 2009 and the Chevron TUA
beginning on July 1, 2009.
LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Revenue
Operating results from marketing and trading activities are presented on a net basis on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Marketing and trading revenues represent
the margin earned on the purchase and transportation costs of LNG and subsequent sales of natural gas to third parties. Our marketing and trading revenues also include pretax
derivative gains/losses and inventory lower-of-cost-or-market adjustments, if any. See table below (in thousands) for itemized comparison of each major type of energy trading
and risk management activity:
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Physical natural gas sales, net of costs
Gain (loss) from derivatives
Other energy trading activities
Total LNG and natural gas marketing gain (loss)

$

$

Nine-Month Period Ended
September 30,
2010
2009
6,724 $
(15,341)
3,581
4,985
4,398
91
14,703 $
(10,265)

Marketing and trading revenues increased $25.0 million, from a $10.3 million loss in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 to a $14.7 million gain in the ninemonth period ended September 30, 2010. The increase in natural gas marketing and trading revenue primarily resulted from the different marketing and trading activities we were
engaged in during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2010, including our agreements with LNGCo that became effective April 1, 2010, compared to the same period of
2009 during which we began purchasing, transporting and unloading commercial LNG cargoes into the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and used certain hedging strategies to
maximize margins on these cargoes. The $10.3 million loss in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 primarily resulted from lower of cost or market write-downs to
our inventory.
DD&A
DD&A increased $8.8 million, from $39.1 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, to $47.9 million in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2010. This increase resulted from beginning to depreciate the costs associated with achieving full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal in the third quarter of
2009.
Interest Expense, net
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized, increased $21.2 million, from $176.8 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009 to $198.0 million in the ninemonth period ended September 30, 2010. This increase in interest expense resulted from the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal, which
reduced the amount of interest expense that was capitalized.
LNG Receiving Terminal and Pipeline Development Expense
Development expense increased $6.6 million, from $0.1 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, to $6.7 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2010. This increase resulted from the costs incurred to develop liquefaction services at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal.
LNG Receiving Terminal and Pipeline Operating Expense
Our LNG receiving terminal and pipeline operating expenses include costs incurred to operate the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal and the Creole Trail Pipeline.
Operating and maintenance expense increased $5.7 million, from $26.0 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2009, to $31.7 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2010. This increase primarily resulted from the achievement of full operability of the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal with approximately 4.0
Bcf/d of total sendout capacity and five LNG storage tanks with approximately 16.9 Bcf of aggregate storage capacity in the third quarter of 2009.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We entered into agreements with LNGCo to provide Cheniere Marketing with financial support to source more cargoes of LNG than it could source on a stand-alone
basis. (See Note 5—“Variable Interest Entity” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis – Liquidity and Capital Resources
— LNG and Natural Gas Marketing Business” for further information related to our variable interest in LNGCo.) As of September 30, 2010, Cheniere Marketing’s maximum
exposure to loss relating to LNGCo was $3.7 million, related to margin deposits that have been paid to LNGCo and fixed fee and gross margin revenue receivables that had been
earned as of September 30, 2010. A portion of this $3.7 million represents our fixed fee receivable and is reported as current accounts and interest receivable, and the remaining
portion is reported as other non-current assets and is to be paid to Cheniere Marketing upon the completion or termination of the LNGCo Agreements.
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Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The selection and application of accounting policies is an important process that has developed as our business activities have evolved and as the accounting rules have
developed. Accounting rules generally do not involve a selection among alternatives but involve an implementation and interpretation of existing rules, and the use of judgment, to
apply the accounting rules to the specific set of circumstances existing in our business. In preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, we endeavor
to comply properly with all applicable rules on or before their adoption, and we believe that the proper implementation and consistent application of the accounting rules are
critical. However, not all situations are specifically addressed in the accounting literature. In these cases, we must use our best judgment to adopt a policy for accounting for these
situations. We accomplish this by analogizing to similar situations and the accounting guidance governing them.
Accounting for LNG Activities
Generally, we begin capitalizing the costs of our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines once the individual project meets the following criteria: (i) regulatory
approval has been received, (ii) financing for the project is available and (iii) management has committed to commence construction. Prior to meeting these criteria, most of the
costs associated with a project are expensed as incurred. These costs primarily include professional fees associated with front-end engineering and design work, costs of securing
necessary regulatory approvals, and other preliminary investigation and development activities related to our LNG receiving terminals and related pipelines.
Generally, costs that are capitalized prior to a project meeting the criteria otherwise necessary for capitalization include: land and lease option costs that are capitalized as
property, plant and equipment and certain permits that are capitalized as intangible LNG assets. The costs of lease options are amortized over the life of the lease once obtained. If
no lease is obtained, the costs are expensed.
We capitalize interest and other related debt costs during the construction period of our LNG receiving terminal. Upon commencement of operations, capitalized interest, as
a component of the total cost, will be amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset.
Revenue Recognition
LNG regasification capacity reservation fees are recognized as revenue over the term of the respective TUAs. Advance capacity reservation fees are initially deferred and
amortized over a 10-year period as a reduction of a customer’s regasification capacity reservation fees payable under its TUA. The retained 2% of LNG delivered for each
customer’s account at the Sabine Pass LNG receiving terminal is recognized as revenues as Sabine Pass LNG performs the services set forth in each customer’s TUA.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from our
estimates and assumptions used.
Estimates used in the assessment of impairment of our long-lived assets, including goodwill, are the most significant of our estimates. There are numerous uncertainties
inherent in estimating future cash flows of assets or business segments. The accuracy of any cash flow estimate is a function of judgment used in determining the amount of cash
flows generated. As a result, cash flows may be different from the cash flows that we use to assess impairment of our assets. Management reviews its estimates of cash flows on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including the current economic and commodity price environment. Significant negative industry or economic
trends, including a significant decline in the market price of our common stock, reduced estimates of future cash flows for our business segments or disruptions to our business
could lead to an impairment charge of our long-lived assets, including goodwill and other intangible assets. Our valuation methodology for assessing impairment requires
management to make judgments and assumptions based on historical experience and to rely heavily on projections of future operating performance. Projections of future operating
results and cash flows may vary significantly from results. In addition, if our analysis results in an impairment of our long-lived assets, including goodwill, we may be required to
record a charge to earnings in our consolidated financial statements during a period in which such impairment is determined to exist, which may negatively impact our results of
operations.
Other items subject to estimates and assumptions include asset retirement obligations, valuation allowances for net deferred tax assets, valuations of derivative instruments,
valuations of noncash compensation and collectability of accounts receivable and other assets.
As future events and their effects cannot be determined accurately, actual results could differ significantly from our estimates.
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LNG and Natural Gas Marketing
We have determined that our LNG and natural gas marketing business activities are energy trading and risk management activities for trading purposes and have elected to
present these activities on a net basis on our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Marketing and trading revenues represent the margin earned on the purchase and
transportation of LNG purchases and subsequent sales of natural gas to third parties. These energy trading and risk management activities include, but are not limited to: purchase
of LNG and natural gas, transportation contracts, and derivatives. Below is a brief description of our accounting treatment of each type of energy trading and risk management
activity and how we account for it:
Purchase of LNG and natural gas
The purchase value of LNG or natural gas inventory is recorded as an asset on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at the cost to acquire the product. Our inventory is subject to
lower of cost or market adjustment each quarter. Recoveries of losses resulting from interim period lower of cost or market adjustments are made due to market price recoveries on
the same inventory in the same fiscal year and are recognized as gains in later interim periods with such gains not exceeding previously recognized losses. Any adjustment to our
inventory is recorded on a net basis as LNG and natural gas marketing revenue on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Transportation contracts
We enter into transportation contracts with respect to the transport of LNG or natural gas to a specific location for storage or sale. Transportation costs that are incurred
during the purchase of LNG or natural gas are capitalized as part of the acquisition costs of the product. Transportation costs incurred to sell LNG or natural gas are recorded on a
net basis as LNG and natural gas marketing revenue on our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Derivatives
We use derivative instruments from time to time to hedge the cash flow variability of our commodity trading activities. We have disclosed certain information regarding
these derivative positions, including the fair value of our derivative positions, in Note 11—“Financial Instruments” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. We record
changes in the fair value of our derivative positions in our LNG and natural gas marketing revenue on our Consolidated Statements of Operations based on the value for which the
derivative instrument could be exchanged between willing parties. To date, all of our derivative positions fair value determinations have been made by management using quoted
prices in active markets for identical instruments. The ultimate fair value of our derivative instruments is uncertain, and we believe that it is possible that a change in the estimated
fair value will occur in the near future as commodity prices change.
Regulated Natural Gas Pipelines
Our natural gas pipeline business is subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) in accordance with the Natural Gas Act of 1938 and
the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978. The economic effects of regulation can result in a regulated company recording as assets those costs that have been or are expected to be
approved for recovery from customers, or recording as liabilities those amounts that are expected to be required to be returned to customers, in a rate-setting process in a period
different from the period in which the amounts would be recorded by an unregulated enterprise. Accordingly, we record assets and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking process that may not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. We continually assess whether regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by considering
factors such as applicable regulatory changes and recent rate orders applicable to other regulated entities. Based on this continual assessment, we believe the existing regulatory
assets are probable of recovery. These regulatory assets and liabilities are primarily classified in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as other assets and other liabilities. We
periodically evaluate their applicability under GAAP, and consider factors such as regulatory changes and the effect of competition. If cost-based regulation ends or competition
increases, we may have to reduce our asset balances to reflect a market basis less than cost and write-off the associated regulatory assets and liabilities.
Items that may influence our assessment are:
•

inability to recover cost increases due to rate caps and rate case moratoriums;

•

inability to recover capitalized costs, including an adequate return on those costs through the rate-making process and the FERC proceedings;

•

excess capacity;

•

increased competition and discounting in the markets we serve; and
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•

impacts of ongoing regulatory initiatives in the natural gas industry.

Natural gas pipeline costs include amounts capitalized as an Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”). The rates used in the calculation of AFUDC are
determined in accordance with guidelines established by the FERC. AFUDC represents the cost of debt and equity funds used to finance our natural gas pipeline additions during
construction. AFUDC is capitalized as a part of the cost of our natural gas pipelines. Under regulatory rate practices, we generally are permitted to recover AFUDC, and a fair
return thereon, through our rate base after our natural gas pipelines are placed in service.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of the assets of businesses acquired. It is evaluated annually for impairment by first comparing our management’s
estimate of the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a computation of the
implied fair value of the goodwill is compared with its related carrying value. If the carrying value of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized in the amount of the excess. We had goodwill of $76.8 million at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, attributable to our LNG receiving
terminal segment.
We perform an annual goodwill impairment review in the fourth quarter of each year, although we may perform a goodwill impairment review more frequently whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. As discussed above regarding our use of estimates, our judgments and assumptions are inherent in
our management’s estimate of future cash flows used to determine the estimate of the reporting unit’s fair value. The use of alternate judgments and/or assumptions could result in
the recognition of different levels of impairment charges in the consolidated financial statements.
Share-Based Compensation Expense
We recognize compensation expense for all share-based payments granted after January 1, 2006 and prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006, using the BlackScholes-Merton option valuation model. We recognize share-based compensation net of an estimated forfeiture rate and only recognize compensation cost for those shares
expected to vest on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award.
Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of share-based payment awards requires the use of highly subjective assumptions, including
the expected life of the share-based payment awards and stock price volatility. We believe that implied volatility, calculated based on traded options of our common stock,
combined with historical volatility is an appropriate indicator of expected volatility and future stock price trends. Therefore, the expected volatility for the year ended December 31,
2009 used in our fair value model was based on a combination of implied and historical volatilities. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of share-based payment
awards represent our best estimates, but these estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change and we use
different assumptions, our share-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and
only recognize expense for those shares expected to vest. If our actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, future share-based compensation expense could be
significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period (See Note 17—“Share-Based Compensation” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
Recent Accounting Standards
In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an amendment to the accounting and disclosure requirements for the consolidation of variable
interest entities. This guidance affects the overall consolidation analysis and requires enhanced disclosures on involvement with variable interest entities. The guidance is effective
as of the first annual reporting period beginning after November 15, 2009, for interim periods within the first annual reporting period and thereafter. Our adoption of this
authoritative guidance had no impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flow.
In January 2010, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which requires additional disclosures and clarifies certain existing disclosure requirements regarding fair value
measurements. This guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009. We adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2010.
However, none of the specific additional disclosure requirements were applicable to us at the time of filing this report. (See Note 11—“Financial Instruments” of our Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for our fair value measurement disclosures).
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Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Cash Investments
We have cash investments that we manage based on internal investment guidelines that emphasize liquidity and preservation of capital. Such cash investments are stated at
historical cost, which approximates fair market value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Marketing and Trading Commodity Price Risk
Through Cheniere Marketing, from time to time we will enter into natural gas and foreign currency derivatives to hedge the exposure of future cash flows associated with the
LNG that we hold. We use value at risk (“VaR”) and other methodologies for market risk measurement and control purposes. The VaR is calculated using the Monte Carlo
simulation method. At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the one-day VaR with a 95% confidence interval on our derivative positions were $0.3 million and less than
$0.1 million, respectively.
Our derivative positions as of September 30, 2010 consisted of financial derivatives to take market positions associated with LNG and natural gas. As of September 30,
2010, we had entered into a total equivalent of 1,297,500 million British thermal units (“MMBtu”) of natural gas swaps through January 2011 for which we will receive fixed
prices of $3.742 to $6.746 million per MMBtu. At September 30, 2010, the value of the natural gas swaps was a liability of less than $0.1 million.
Our derivative positions as of September 30, 2010 also consisted of forward foreign exchange contracts entered into to hedge exposure associated with our LNG and natural
gas market positions. As of September 30, 2010, we had entered into forward contracts through December 2010 to exchange a total of 80,442 GBP for which we would receive
fixed exchange rates of 1.5559 to 1.5707 USD/GBP. At September 30, 2010, the value of the foreign exchange contracts was a liability of less than $0.1 million.
Item 4.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed by us under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. As of the end of the period covered by this report,
we evaluated, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
During the most recent fiscal quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1.

Legal Proceedings

In the future we or any of our subsidiaries may be involved as a party to various legal proceedings, which are incidental to the ordinary course of business. We regularly
analyze current information and, as necessary, provide accruals for probable liabilities on the eventual disposition of these matters. In the opinion of management, as of September
30, 2010, there were no known threatened or pending legal matters that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.
Item 6.

Exhibits

10.1*

Seventh amendment to Credit Agreement, dated November 3, 2010, by and among Cheniere Common Units Holding, LLC, the Loan Parties (as defined therein), the
Lenders (as defined therein) and The Bank of New York Mellon, as administrative agent and collateral agent

31.1*

Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

31.2*

Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act

32.1**

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2**

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*
**

Filed herewith.
Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.
CHENIERE ENERGY, INC.
/s/

JERRY D. SMITH
Jerry D. Smith
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
(on behalf of the registrant and
as principal accounting officer)
Date: November 4, 2010

EXHIBIT 10.1
EXECUTION COUNTERPART

SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
This SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”) is entered into, as of November 3, 2010, by Cheniere Common Units Holding,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Borrower”), the Loan Parties, the Lenders party hereto and The Bank of New York Mellon, as administrative agent (in such
capacity and together with its successors, the “Administrative Agent”) and as collateral agent (in such capacity and together with its successors, the “Collateral Agent”).
All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Credit Agreement (as defined below).
Preliminary Statements
A.
The Borrower has entered into that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2008, by and among the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, certain
affiliates of the Borrower signatory thereto and the Lenders from time to time party thereto (as amended by that certain First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of
September 15, 2008, Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2008, Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009, Fourth
Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2009, Amendment No. Four-A to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 27, 2009, Amendment No. Four-B to Credit
Agreement, dated as of April 28, 2009, Amendment No. Four-C to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2009, Amendment No. Four-D to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 29,
2009, Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of September 17, 2009 and Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2010, as further amended, restated,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”).
B.
The Borrower, the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders desire to amend the Credit Agreement as set forth herein in
order to clarify certain provisions of the Credit Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the agreements and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Borrower, the Loan Parties, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders, hereby agree as follows:
1. Amendments to Credit Agreement. On the Seventh Amendment Effective Date, the Credit Agreement is amended as follows:
1.1. Amendment to Section 1.01 (Definitions). Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is amended by adding the following new definitions in proper alphabetical
sequence:
“Seventh Amendment” shall mean that certain Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2010, among the Borrower, certain
affiliates of the Borrower signatory thereto, the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders party thereto.

“Seventh Amendment Effective Date” shall mean the date of satisfaction or waiver by the Lenders of the conditions referred to in Section 3 of the
Seventh Amendment.
1.2. Amendment to Section 2.05(b) (Interest on Loans). Section 2.05(b) of the Credit Agreement is amended to insert the phrase “with the repayment of the Loans”
immediately before the phrase “as provided in Section 2.09” in part (ii) of the second sentence of Section 2.05(b).
1.3. Amendment to Section 2.09 (Mandatory Prepayments).
1.3.1. Section 2.09(a) of the Credit Agreement is amended to delete the parenthetical in the first sentence of Section 2.09(a) which reads “(excluding
Permitted Accrued Interest)”.
1.3.2. Section 2.09(b) of the Credit Agreement is amended to delete the parenthetical in the first sentence of Section 2.09(b) which reads “(including
Permitted Accrued Interest)”.
2. Representations and Warranties. Each Loan Party hereby represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders (which representations
and warranties shall survive the execution and delivery of this Amendment), as follows:
2.1. Absence of Defaults. No event has occurred and is continuing or will result from the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Amendment that would
constitute a Default or Event of Default after giving effect to this Amendment.
2.2. Enforceability. This Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by such Loan Party and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Loan Party
enforceable against such Loan Party in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws affecting
creditors’ rights generally and subject to general principles of equity, regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.
2.3. Authorization, No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Amendment by each Loan Party (i) has been duly authorized by all requisite
organizational action of such Person and (ii) will not (A) violate (1) any provision of law, statute, rule or regulation, or of the certificate or articles of incorporation or
other constitutive documents or by-laws of such Person, (2) any order of any Governmental Authority or arbitrator or (3) any provision of any indenture, agreement
or other instrument to which such Person is a party or by which it or any of its property is or may be bound, (B) be in conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute
(alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, or give rise to any right to accelerate or to require the prepayment, repurchase or redemption of any
obligation under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (C) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or
assets now owned or hereafter acquired by such Person (other than Liens created under the Security Documents).
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2.4. Incorporation of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained in Article III of the Credit Agreement are and will be true and correct
in all material respects on and as of the date hereof to the same extent as though made on and as of this date, except to the extent such representations and warranties
specifically relate to an earlier date, in which case they were true and correct in all material respects on and as of such earlier date.
3. Effectiveness. The effectiveness of this Amendment is subject to the satisfaction of each the following conditions precedent:
3.1. Execution. The Administrative Agent shall have received duly executed and delivered counterparts of this Amendment that, when taken together, bear the signatures
of the Loan Parties, the Lenders, the Administrative Agent and the Collateral Agent.
3.2. Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all respects.
3.3. Necessary Consents. Each Loan Party shall have obtained all material consents necessary or advisable in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Amendment.
3.4. Fees. All fees and expense reimbursement payable by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent and the Lenders for which invoices have been
presented shall have been paid in full.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Amendment, each Lender by delivering its signature page to this Amendment hereby directs the Agents to execute this
Amendment and shall be deemed to have acknowledged receipt of and consented to and approved the Amendment and each other document required hereunder to be
approved by any Agent or any Lender, as applicable, on the date such Lender delivers its signature to this Amendment and each of the Agents shall be entitled to rely on such
confirmation.
4. Reference to and Effect Upon the Loan Documents.
4.1. Except as specifically set forth above, the Credit Agreement and each other Loan Document shall remain in full force and effect and is hereby ratified and
confirmed. Except to the extent expressly set forth herein, the execution, delivery and effectiveness of this Amendment shall not operate as a waiver of any right,
power or remedy of Agents or any Lender under the Loan Documents, or any other document, instrument or agreement executed and/or delivered in connection
therewith.
4.2. Any reference in any Loan Document to the Credit Agreement shall be a reference to the Credit Agreement as modified by this Amendment, and any reference in any
Loan Document to any other Loan Document shall be a reference to such referenced Loan Document as modified by this Amendment.
4.3. This Amendment is a Loan Document. The provisions of Section 9.15 of the Credit Agreement shall apply with like effect to this Amendment.
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5. Further Assurances. Each Loan Party hereby agrees to authorize, execute and deliver all additional instruments, certificates, financing statements, agreements or documents,
and take all such actions as the Administrative Agent, the Collateral Agent or the Lenders may reasonably request for the purposes of implementing or effectuating the
provisions of this Amendment.
6. Governing Law. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THEREOF.
7. Headings. Section headings in this Amendment are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute part of this Amendment for any other
purposes.
8. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by all parties hereto in any number of separate counterparts each of which may be delivered in original, facsimile or other
electronic (e.g., “.pdf”) form, and all of such counterparts taken together constitute one instrument.
9. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Amendment shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Amendment shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
provision had never been contained herein.
10. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL
ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO THIS AMENDMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS AND FOR ANY COUNTERCLAIM THEREIN.
11. Final Agreement of the Parties. THIS AMENDMENT, THE CREDIT AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS REPRESENT THE FINAL
AGREEMENT AMONG THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT ORAL
AGREEMENTS OF THE PARTIES. THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS AMONG THE PARTIES.
[Remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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CHENIERE COMMON UNITS
HOLDING, LLC, as Borrower
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE CORPUS CHRISTI
PIPELINE, L.P., as Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE CREOLE TRAIL
PIPELINE, L.P., as Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE ENERGY
OPERATING CO. INC., as Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE MIDSTREAM
HOLDINGS, INC., as Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer

CHENIERE PIPELINE
COMPANY, as a Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE PIPELINE GP
INTERESTS, LLC, as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE SOUTHERN
TRAIL GP, INC., as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE SOUTHERN
TRAIL PIPELINE, L.P., as a
Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
GRAND CHENIERE
PIPELINE, LLC, as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer

CHENIERE ENERGY
SHARED SERVICES, INC., as
a Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE ENERGY, INC.,
as a Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE LNG
HOLDINGS, LLC, as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE LNG O&M
SERVICES, LLC, as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer
CHENIERE LNG
TERMINALS, INC., as a Loan
Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer

CHENIERE LNG, INC., as a
Loan Party
By:/s/ Graham A. McArthur
Name: Graham A. McArthur
Title: Treasurer

LENDERS:
GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS
FUND LP, as a Lender
By:GSO Capital Partners LP, its
investment advisor
By:/s/ Marisa J. Beeney
Name: Marisa J. Beeney
Title: Authorized Signatory
GSO COF FACILITY LLC, as
a Lender
By:GSO Capital Partners LP, as
Portfolio Manager
By:/s/ Marisa J. Beeney
Name: Marisa J. Beeney
Title: Authorized Signatory
GSO SPECIAL SITUATIONS
OVERSEAS MASTER FUND
LTD, as a Lender
By:GSO Capital Partners LP, its
investment advisor
By:/s/ Marisa J. Beeney
Name: Marisa J. Beeney
Title: Authorized Signatory

HECKBERT 21 GROUP
FINANCING LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY,
BUDAPEST (HU),
ZURICH BRANCH, as a
Lender
By:/s/ Colm Cunningham
Name: Colm Cunningham
Title: Branch Manager
BLACKSTONE DISTRESSED
SECURITIES FUND L.P., as a
Lender
By:Blackstone Distressed
Securities Advisors L.P., its
investment manager
By:/s/ Marisa J. Beeney
Name: Marisa J. Beeney
Title: Authorized Signatory
INVESTMENT
PARTNERS II (A), LLC, as
a Lender
By:Blackrock Financial
Management, Inc., its
investment manager
By:/s/ J. David Matter
Name: J. David Matter
Title: Managing Director
By: /s/ Marie M. Bender
Name: Marie M. Bender
Title: Managing Director

SCORPION CAPITAL
PARTNERS, LP, as a Lender
By:Scorpion GP, LLC
By:/s/ Kevin R. McCarthy
Name: Kevin R. McCarthy
Title: Manager

THE BANK OF NEW
YORK MELLON, as
Administrative Agent and
Collateral Agent
By:/s/ Melinda Valentive
Name: Melinda Valentive
Title: Vice President

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT
I, Charif Souki, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/

CHARIF SOUKI
Charif Souki
Chief Executive Officer, President & Chairman of
the Board
Date: November 4, 2010

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE EXCHANGE ACT
I, Meg A. Gentle, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Cheniere Energy, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/S/

MEG A. GENTLE
Meg A. Gentle
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 4, 2010

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Charif Souki, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Charif Souki
Chief Executive Officer, President & Chairman of
the Board
Date: November 4, 2010

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the quarterly report of Cheniere Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Meg A. Gentle, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to my knowledge, that:
(1)

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/

MEG A. GENTLE
Meg A. Gentle
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 4, 2010

